
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              August 10, 2021 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room 
County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards 
Independence, California 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Notices: (1)  In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 

August 10, 2021 - 8:30 AM 

  
 

 1. PUBLIC COMMENT (Join meeting via Zoom here) 
  

 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – Pursuant to 
paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code §54956.9 – Names of 
cases: LADWP v. Inyo County et al. (CA 5th District Court of Appeal Case No. 
F081389) and Inyo County v. LADWP (Kern County Sup. Ct. Case Nos. BCV-18-
101260-TSC, BCV-18-101261-TSC, and BCV-18-101262-TSC). 

  
 

  3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION –
 Significant exposure to potential litigation pursuant to (2) of subdivision (d) of 
Government Code §54956.9. Facts and circumstance: Use of force incident on July 
24, 2021. Number of potential cases: one. 

  
 

  4. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Pursuant to 
Government Code §54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s 
Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant Association (EOAA); Inyo County 
Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County Employees Association 
(ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; 
Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association (LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. 
County designated representatives – County Administrator Leslie Chapman, Deputy 
Personnel Director Sue Dishion, County Counsel Marshall Rudolph, Health and 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  In order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, Governor Newsom has issued 
Executive Orders that temporarily suspend certain requirements of the Brown Act. Please be advised that the 
Board of Supervisors Chambers are closed to the public, the Board will be conducting its meetings exclusively 
online.  

Board Members and Staff will participate via Zoom webinar, accessible to the public at 
https://zoom.us/j/868254781. Individuals will be asked to provide their name and an email address in order to 
access the videoconference. Anyone who does not want to provide their email address may use the following 
generic, non-functioning address to gain access: donotreply@inyocounty.us.  

Anyone wishing to make either a general public comment or a comment on a specific agenda item prior to the 
meeting or as the item is being heard, may do so either in writing or by utilizing the Zoom "hand-raising” feature 
when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will call on those who wish to speak). Generally, speakers are 
limited to three minutes. Written public comment, limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to the Assistant 
Clerk of the Board at boardclerk@inyocounty.us. Your comments may or may not be read aloud, but all comments 
will be made a part of the record. Please make sure to submit a separate email for each item that you wish to 
comment upon. 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:donotreply@inyocounty.us
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              August 10, 2021 

Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff Thomson. 
  

 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any 
time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 5. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  

 

  6. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW. 
  

 

  7. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

  8. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes) 
  

 

  9. INTRODUCTION - The following new employee will be introduced to the Board: 
Timothy Harmon, Appraiser, Assessor's Office. 

  
 

  10. COVID-19 STAFF REPORT 
  

 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS  
  

 

 11. Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention - Request Board find that, 
consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for one (1) Human Services Supervisor exists in a non-General Fund budget, 
as certified by the HHS Director and concurred with by the County Administrator and 
Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the 
position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an 
open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and C) 
approve the hiring of one (1) Human Services Supervisor at Range 70 ($4,943 - 
$6,012). 

  
 

 12. Probation - Request Board: 
A) approve the job description for a Probation Services Coordinator; 
B) find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy:  

1. the availability of funding for one (1) Probation Services Coordinator 
exists in the General Fund, as certified by the Chief Probation Officer 
and concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-
Controller; and 

2. where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, 
the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, 
but an open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified 
applicants apply; and 

C) approve the hiring of one (1) Probation Services Coordinator at Range 67 
($4,512 - $5,476). 

  
 

 13. Sheriff - Request Board find that consistent with the adopted Authorized Position 
Review Policy: A) the availability of funding for one (1) Animal Services Shelter 
Attendant exists in the General Fund, as certified by the Sheriff and concurred with 
by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may 
meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through 
internal recruitment, but open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified 
applicants apply; C) approve the hiring of one (1) Animal Shelter Attendant at Range 
42 ($2,577 - $3,131); and D) if an internal candidate is hired as a result of the open 
recruitment, authorize the Sheriff's Office to backfill resulting vacancy. 

  

 
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              August 10, 2021 

 14. Sheriff - Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position 
Review Policy: A) the availability of funding for one (1) Public Safety Dispatcher 
exists in the General Fund, as certified by the Sheriff and concurred with by the 
County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet 
the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through internal 
recruitment, but an open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified 
applicants apply; C) approve the hiring of one (1) Public Safety Dispatcher at Range 
55-64 ($3,477 - $5,211); and D) if an internal candidate is hired as a result of the 
open recruitment, authorize the Sheriff's Office to backfill the resulting vacancy. 

  
 

CONSENT AGENDA (Approval recommended by the County Administrator) 
  

 

 15. Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health - Request Board appoint HHS 
Assistant Director Meaghan McCamman as the Inyo County Alcohol and Drug 
Program Administrator consistent with California Health and Safety Code (HSC) 
Section 11800. 

  
 

 16. Planning Department - Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract 
between the County of Inyo and Helix Environmental Planning to amend the fee 
schedule, contingent upon adoption of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon appropriate signatures being 
obtained. 

  
 

 17. Planning Department - Request Board approve the Joint Funding Agreement with 
the U.S. Geological Survey for Wells and Springs Monitored in the Amargosa Desert 
in the amount of $8,000 for the period of October 1, 2021 through September 30, 
2022, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
 

 18. Public Works - Request Board approve Resolution No. 2021-42, titled, “A Resolution 
of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California Authorizing the 
Recording of a Notice of Completion for the Progress House Generator Project," and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience) 
  

 

 19. Agricultural Commissioner - Request Board receive a presentation on the 2020 
Annual Crop and Livestock Report. 

  
 

  20. Water Department - Request Board hear an informational workshop regarding the 
status and summary of the administrative draft of the OVGA Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan (GSP). 

  
 

 21. Water Department - Request Board provide direction to the Owens Valley 
Groundwater Authority representatives in advance of the OVGA regular meeting 
scheduled for August 12, 2021. 

  
 

 22. County Administrator - Request Board: A) declare a limited amount of office 
furniture staged at the fairgrounds after the move to the County Office Building that 
was subsequently acquired by various local agencies to be surplus; and B) approve 
the donation of said office furniture to various local agencies (4/5ths vote required). 

  
 

 23. County Counsel/County Administrator - Request Board:  
A) waive further reading of the proposed ordinance titled, “An Ordinance of the 

Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, Repealing 
Chapter 2.07 of the Inyo County Code, Pertaining to Reorganization of 
County Departments and Offices," and schedule enactment for 11 a.m. 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       4                                                                                                              August 10, 2021 

August 17, 2021, in the Board of Supervisors Chambers, County 
Administrative Center, Independence; and 

B) waive further reading of the proposed ordinance titled, “An Ordinance of the 
Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, Repealing 
Ordinance Number 1044 and Establishing a New Chapter 2.30 of the Inyo 
County Code," and schedule enactment for 11 a.m. August 17, 2021, in the 
Board of Supervisors Chambers, County Administrative Center, 
Independence. 

  
 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
  

 

  24. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS  
  

 

 



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS - ACTION 
REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  August 10, 2021
 
FROM:  
 
SUBJECT:  Approve the hiring of a Human Services Supervisor
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for one (1) Human Services Supervisor exists in a non-General Fund budget, as certified by the HHS 
Director and concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may 
meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an 
open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and C) approve the hiring of one (1) 
Human Services Supervisor at Range 70 ($4,943 - $6,012).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Human Service Supervisor who acted as the project coordinator for our Tobacco Education Program recently 
accepted a position in another County Department.  This position is the primary day-to-day point of contact for 
California Tobacco Control Program (CTCP) communication with the County. The position regularly accesses 
CTCP electronic database systems to manage project activities and is responsible for overall day-to-day 
management related to implementing and evaluating the local Comprehensive Tobacco Control Plan; onboarding, 
directing and supervising staff; preparing or or overseeing the preparation of the Plan, Budget, progress reports 
and cost reports; maintenance of required documents for auditing purposes; providing educational classes; and 
developing media messages, newsletters, and other forms of mass communication messaging.  The Department 
respectfully requests your Board authorize the Department to recruit and hire a Human Services Supervisor to fill 
this vacancy.  
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
NA
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to fill the position which would result in the Department being out of compliance with 
State staffing requirements, as well as having limited ability to manage the administrative functions required by 
the State.  
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
NA
 
FINANCING:
State funds. This position is budgeted 10% in Tobacco (640317/640322) in the Salaries and Benefits object 
codes.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
 
APPROVALS:
Marilyn Mann Created/Initiated - 7/21/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 7/21/2021
Marilyn Mann Approved - 7/22/2021
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 8/4/2021
Anna Scott Approved - 8/4/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/4/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 8/4/2021
Anna Scott Final Approval - 8/4/2021



County of Inyo

Probation
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS - ACTION 
REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  August 10, 2021
 
FROM:  Jeffrey Thomson
 
SUBJECT:  Hiring of one (1) Probation Services Coordinator with the Probation Department
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: 
A) approve the job description for a Probation Services Coordinator; 
B) find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy:
1. the availability of funding for one (1) Probation Services Coordinator exists in the General Fund, as certified by 
the Chief Probation Officer and concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; and
2. where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled 
through an internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; 
and 
C) approve the hiring of one (1) Probation Services Coordinator at Range 67 ($4,512 - $5,476).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Due to the recent resignation of our Community Services Coordinator, we have created a new job description 
that is more aligned to the needs of the probation department. While a key function of the position will be to 
continue to manage the probation community work services program, the addition of providing alternative 
sentencing services will be of great benefit to the Department. It is the intent, if approved by the Board, to 
conduct an open recruitment.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could direct the Probation Department to continue without filling the vacant position; however, this is 
not recommended.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Personnel Department and Auditor/Controller's office
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
The position is authorized in the Board approved 2020-21 Probation General budget 023000 and Juvenile 
Institutions budget 023100.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Probation Services Coordinator Job Description
 
APPROVALS:
Krystal Leonard Created/Initiated - 6/16/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/16/2021
Krystal Leonard Approved - 7/30/2021
Jeffrey Thomson Approved - 8/3/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/4/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 8/4/2021
Jeffrey Thomson Final Approval - 8/4/2021



Probation Services Coordinator

DEFINITION: Under general supervision of the Assistant Chief Probation Officer, assist 
with the supervision of department adult and juvenile clientele; plans, organizes, 
coordinates, and administers the Probation Department’s alternative sentencing 
programs including community work service, pre-trial services, and electronic 
monitoring programs; provides site supervision of program participants; evaluates 
projects and sites; plans, estimates, and secures supplies, equipment, and materials for 
projects; conducts interviews, assessments, and case management services for 
alternative sentencing program participants; designs, develops, and presents various 
prevention programs for community partners including area education systems; fosters 
cooperative working relationships with various public and non-profit groups; and 
performs related duties as assigned.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:  Job assignments for this classification 
include providing a variety of assistance with a caseload of the County Probation 
Department. While duties include contact and interaction with probation clientele, the 
duties do not include exercise of any of the peace officer powers which are imposed by 
statute on the Deputy Probation Officer class series.

Positions at this level receive only occasional instruction or assistance as new or 
unusual situations arise, and are fully aware of the operating procedures and policies of 
the work unit.

ESSENTIAL JOB DUTIES: This classification is primarily responsible for the overall 
management and operation of the Probation Department’s alternative 
sentencing/prevention programs for both adult and youth clientele. Duties require 
exercise of independent initiative and judgment in relieving the Assistant Chief 
Probation Officer of the operational functions within the assigned program services.
Duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

 Develops various community work service opportunities and projects for adults 
and juveniles.

 Provide case management services for pre-trial and electronic monitoring 
program.

 Creates, organizes, and maintains various prevention programs presented to 
schools, agencies, and community members. 

 Prepares written reports about clientele for submission to the courts.
 Provides caseload services to a select group of offenders.
 Provides training to entry level staff as assigned.
 Designs and prepares special reports about programs or department functions as 

required.
 Assists in the collection of urine samples for drug testing.
 May testify in court.
 Assists with probation caseload activities including making corrections and 

changes to data, reviewing information, scheduling appointments, and 
maintaining communication with related agencies.

 Perform duties with safety in mind.
 Acts as liaison to other agency and community groups.
 Attendance of various trainings, meetings, workshops, etc., as required to 

enhance job knowledge and skills.



 
OTHER JOB RELATED DUTIES: Perform related duties and responsibilities as 
assigned including the transportation of probation clients to and from various locations 
such as jails, juvenile halls, short term residential treatment programs, community work 
service sites, and/or schools. This classification may be assigned to assist the Deputy 
Probation Officer with various case management tasks. In the absence of the Deputy 
Probation Officer, may provide case management services to adult and youth clients.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS /EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS

Education: High school graduate or equivalent with completion of sixty (60) semester 
units from an accredited college or university with at least fifteen (15) units in 
criminology, corrections, counseling, psychology, social work, or a closely related field; 
or two years of full-time, paid experience in the field of law enforcement, corrections, or 
social services, or education.

License or Certificate: Must successfully complete pre-employment background 
investigation, psychological examination, and physical examination, including drug 
screen; must possess or ability to obtain a valid operator’s license issued by the 
California Department of Motor Vehicles; must possess or obtain during the 
probationary period, valid first aid and CPR certificates.

SKILLS AND ABILITIES

Essential Functions: 
 Demonstrate proficient time management skills, organizational skills and ability to 

prioritize duties and assignments during the work day.
 Prepare clear, concise correspondence and reports. 
 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.
 Collect and organize data.
 Prepare, maintain, and update a variety of records and reports including financial 

and statistical reports.
 Establish, maintain, and foster positive and harmonious working relationships 

with those contacted in the course of work.
 Demonstrate professionalism when interacting with partner agencies, members 

of the public, clients and Department personnel.
 Operate modern office equipment including computer equipment. 
 Operate a motor vehicle safely.

Knowledge of: 
 Behavior patterns of crime and delinquency. 
 Financial and statistical record keeping.  
 Legal terminology. 
 English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation. 



Ability to: 
 Learn to develop and prepare a variety of legal documents, records and reports. 
 Learn to perform sample collection and drug testing.
 Effectively work with assigned probation cases. 
 Make objective judgments as to the suitability of offenders participating in 

particular programs.
 Follow oral and written instructions and make decisions in routine procedural 

matters without immediate supervision.
 Read, understand, and interpret standard official legal documents. 
 Maintain accurate and concise records and reports.
 Complete forms accurately and effectively.
 Demonstrate knowledge of and compliance with Department and County Policy 

and Procedure.
 Assume responsibility for and exercise judgment in a variety of situations, while 

recognizing scope of authority.
 Provide information and apply policies and procedures of the department where 

assigned.   
 Set criteria as to the suitability of offenders participating in particular programs. 
 Enforce the work standards and regulations as set forth by the Department and 

County.
 Maintain confidential information in accordance with legal standards and/or 

County regulations.
 Frequent use of depth perception, peripheral vision and color perception.
 Frequently lift, carry, reach, push, pull, twist and manipulate large and small 

objects.
 Occasionally kneel, bend, twist, squat, balance and crawl. 
 Frequent use of hand-eye coordination. 
 Frequent use of data entry device including repetitive hand and arm motion.
 Occasionally lift and carry up to 65 pounds. 
 Normal dexterity, frequent holding and grasping. 
 Sit or stand for long periods of time.
 Drive a motor vehicle.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:
 Probation Period: One Year
 Must be willing to work with justice involved adults and youth and be willing to 

work a flexible schedule including nights, weekends, on-call, and may work at 
various locations throughout the County.



County of Inyo

Sheriff
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS - ACTION 
REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  August 10, 2021
 
FROM:  Tim Bachman
 
SUBJECT:  Hire on Animal Shelter Attendant
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for one (1) Animal Services Shelter Attendant exists in the General Fund, as certified by the Sheriff and 
concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet the 
qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through internal recruitment, but open 
recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; C) approve the hiring of one (1) Animal 
Shelter Attendant at Range 42 ($2,577 - $3,131); and D) if an internal candidate is hired as a result of the open 
recruitment, authorize the Sheriff's Office to backfill resulting vacancy.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Due to a recently vacated position, we have 1 vacant full-time Shelter Attendant position at the Animal Shelter. 
 This position is needed as there is very limited staff at the shelter.  The Shelter Attendant position is vital to 
ensure the proper operation of the shelter.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
The Animal Services budget includes three (3) full-time shelter attendants. The shelter is operating with two (2) 
shelter attendants, one of which is being utilized to act in an officer role temporarily. The needs of the animals 
housed in the shelter require adequate staff to provide consistent care and maintain the facility.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could leave the shelter attendant position vacant and maintain the shelter with the use of Animal 
Control Officers. Staff does not recommend this alternative; it will increase overtime costs in the animal services 
budget and negatively impact the officer’s ability to respond to calls for service.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

This position will be paid from the Animal Control budget 023900 and is included in the Department's requested 
budget and authorized staff.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
 
APPROVALS:
Tim Bachman Created/Initiated - 7/26/2021
Riannah Reade Approved - 7/27/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 7/28/2021
Tim Bachman Approved - 7/29/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 7/29/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 7/29/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 8/4/2021
Jeffrey Hollowell Final Approval - 8/4/2021



County of Inyo

Sheriff
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS - ACTION 
REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  August 10, 2021
 
FROM:  Tim Bachman
 
SUBJECT:  Hiring of one (1) Public Safety Dispatcher
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for one (1) Public Safety Dispatcher exists in the General Fund, as certified by the Sheriff and concurred 
with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet the qualifications 
for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is more 
appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; C) approve the hiring of one (1) Public Safety Dispatcher at 
Range 55-64 ($3,477 - $5,211); and D) if an internal candidate is hired as a result of the open recruitment, 
authorize the Sheriff's Office to backfill the resulting vacancy.

 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Due to a recently vacated position, we have 1 vacant full-time Public Safety Dispatcher position. Public Safety 
Dispatchers are a vital resource for the daily operations of the Sheriff's Office, local emergency agencies, and 
other government and law enforcement agencies near and far. It is imperative that we fill the vacant position as 
soon as possible to continue to provide consistent coverage in the Communications Center that operates seven 
days a week / 24 hours a day.  The Communication Center has experienced a steady increase of calls for service, 
which is elevated during the tourist season with Search & Rescue operations, increased Off-Highway Vehicle 
activity, and an influx of out-of-town visitors.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could leave the Safety Dispatcher vacant. The staff does not recommend this action. While the 
vacancy exists, mandatory training is completed, and the position is filled, we are utilizing existing Dispatchers, 
Deputies, or Supervisors to fill in as necessary, which results in additional unanticipated overtime expenses.  We 
request your Board to authorize, pursuant to the candidate’s qualifications and experience, the hiring of a qualified 
candidate for the Public Safety Dispatcher I position.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
The Public Safety Dispatcher I position is included in the FY 2021-2022 Sheriff’s General requested budget 
(022700). The hiring of this position falls within the Sheriff’s Office's current authorized strength.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
 
APPROVALS:
Tim Bachman Created/Initiated - 7/26/2021
Riannah Reade Approved - 7/27/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 7/28/2021
Tim Bachman Approved - 7/29/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 7/29/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 7/29/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 8/4/2021
Jeffrey Hollowell Final Approval - 8/4/2021



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 10, 2021
 
FROM:  Marilyn Mann
 
SUBJECT:  Appointment of Inyo County Alcohol and Drug Program Administrator
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board appoint HHS Assistant Director Meaghan McCamman as the Inyo County Alcohol and Drug 
Program Administrator consistent with California Health and Safety Code (HSC) Section 11800.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Your Board previously appointed Gail Zwier, PhD, the HHS Deputy Director or Behavioral Health, as the County 
Alcohol and Drug Program Administrator pursuant to Health and Safety Code Sections 11800, 11801 and 
California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 9, Sections 9412 and 9414, which outline the requirements for this 
state-county liaison and title.   Dr. Zwier has notified the Department of her intent to retire as of September 1, 
2021, requiring us to appoint someone to the role of Alcohol and Drug Administrator.  The role of Alcohol and 
Drug Administrator has previously been held by the HHS Assistant Director and the Department is recommending 
to once again appoint the Department's Assistant Director, Meaghan McCamman, to this role as she meets the 
requirements as outlined in CCR Section 9414.  
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Department has one or more managers who may be able to hold this title.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
California Department of Health Care Services and the County Behavioral Health Director's Association of 
California
 
FINANCING:
There is no money involved in this action.
 
ATTACHMENTS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
APPROVALS:
Marilyn Mann Created/Initiated - 7/26/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 7/26/2021
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 7/26/2021



County of Inyo

Planning Department
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 10, 2021
 
FROM:  Cathreen Richards
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment One to the contract with Helix Environmental Planning
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Helix Environmental 
Planning to amend the fee schedule, contingent upon adoption of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The County entered into a contract with Helix Environmental Planning for the provision of planning services for a 
vacant lands study and zoning review to promote housing opportunities in the County. This work is being paid for 
by a SB2 affordable housing grant that includes evaluations required by the California Environmental Quality Act, 
in amount not to exceed $151,500.

Helix is requesting that the contract be amended to include a new fee schedule to more accurately reflect the 
staff and labor costs regarding the work being conducted.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD).
 
FINANCING:
This project is being funded by a SB 2 grant through HCD.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Helix Contract Amendment 1
 
APPROVALS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Cathreen Richards Created/Initiated - 7/28/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 7/28/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 7/28/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 7/28/2021
Cathreen Richards Approved - 8/2/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 8/2/2021
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 8/4/2021



Amendment #1 to County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 

AMENDMENT NO. ONE TO THE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

HELIX ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING, INC. FOR THE 
PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and Helix 
Environmental Planning, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as Contractor) have entered into an 
Agreement for the provision of professional services dated September 8, 2020 on County 
of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156 for the term from September 1, 2020 to February 28, 
2022. 

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, 
added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such 
amendment or change is in written form, and executed with the same formalities as such 
Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire to consent to amend such Agreement as 
set forth below. 

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows: 

• Amend Attachment B, Exhibit A Scope of Work, Schedule and Budget, Helix 
Labor to reflect the attached fee schedule. 

 
 
 
 





Helix Labor
Labor Category Labor Rate
Field archaeologist $100
Field biologist $105
Senior biologist $190
Senior GIS technician $160
Planner I $95
Planner II $125
Jr. Air Quality technician $120
Sr. Air Quality technician $195



AGREEMEHT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND HEL lX Fnvironrnental Plan nl no_ lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF Professional s,trnvr.-F,r

IHTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the Countyof lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "Countf') has the need for the
of l{Fl lX Fnuirnnmonlo Planninn lnn

(hereinafter referred to as "Consullant'), and in considenati
conditions hereinafter conlained, the parties hereby agree

on of the mutualpromises, covenants, terms, and
as follows:

TERMS AND GONOITIONS

1 $COPE OFWORK.

The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its requesl, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Consullant to perform under this Agreemenl will be made by the lnvo Countv Plan n Director

H1'"T,T1"":1.'"'fr"T::',Jil"T',+f;t-.Ti'fi #[xx"J;ffi1,'#;i
wananty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or wprk witt Ue requEsted of the
Consultant by the Corynty under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirernent to request from Consultant the perlormance of any services ol work at all, even if Courity should
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement,

Services and work provided by the Consultant at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a rnanner consistent with the requirements and standards established by aiplicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinan&s, iegulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from Septernber 1, 2020 to February 28, 2022 unless
s9oFrterminatedasprovidedbeIow'lnaddition,Countyshallhavetwooptionffientfor
additional one-year periods as follows:

A.
B,

From
From

through
through

County of lnyo Slandard Coniract - No. 15€
(lnd6pendent Consullant - Professional)

Pagel of11

Gounty shall exercise such options by giving vwitten notice to Contractor at least thirty (i0) days
before the expiration sf the Agreement, or an extenCion thereof.

The notice shall speciflr the period of the options being exercised. The option to extend shall be upon
the same terms and conditions stated in this Agreement.

3, CONSIDERATION,

A- Compensation. County shall pay Consultant in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
{set forth as Attachment B} for the services and work described in Attachment A which are per{ormed by
Consultant at the County's request,

.. B. _ Tr:avgl p0d oer diem. County shall reimburse Consultant for the lravel expenses and per
diem which Consultant incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement,
Consultant shall request apptoval by lhe County prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses. Requests

0CI/04/201 s



by Consultant for approval to incur travel and per diem expen$es s
nvo Counlv Plannino f)irector

hall be submitted to the
Travel and per diem

expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the rates set forth in the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem
Payment {Atlachment C). County reseryes the right to deny reimbursement to Consullant for travel or per
diem expenses which are either in excess of the amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in
Attachment C, or which are incurred by the Consultant without the prior approval of the County.

C. No addilional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Consultant
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement, Specifically, Consultant shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreemenl, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacalion time, paid holidays, or othet paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit unon amounl pavFble under Aqreement, The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under lhis Agreement shall not exceed
$ s151.500 {initialterm) (option 1} and

2) for a total of R Dollars
(hereinafter refened to as
reimbursement requested

"conl.act limit"). County expressly reserves the right to deny any
by Qontractor for sewices or work pertormed which is in excess of

County of lnyo Slandard Contract - No, 156
(lndependeni Consultant - Professional)

Page2of1l

payment or
the conlract

limit.
E. Bjllino and,oarrmgnt. Consultant shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized

statement of all hours spent by Consultant in performing services and work deecribed in Attachment A, which
were done at the Countt's request. This statement wilt be submitted to the County not later than the fifth
(Sth) day of the month. The statement to be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the
preceding month through and including the last day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the
date on which the hours were r,rorked and describe the nature of the work which was performed on each day.
Consultant 's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses,
which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Consultant during that period, The itemized
statement for travel expen$es 6nd per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordanoe with the Countt's accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of the
statement by the fifth (sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Consultant on the last day of the
month.

F. Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in srtbparagraph (2) belw, County will not withhold any
federal or state income taxes or social security from any pa!4nents made by County to ConsultEnt
under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will wlthhotd California State income taxes from payments made
under this Agreement to non-Califomia resident independent Consultanl's when it is anticipated lhat
total annual paymenls to Consultant under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred
ninety nine dollars ($1,499-00).

(3) Except as se,t forlh above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes
or payments from sums paid by County to Consultant under this

Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is
the sole responsibility of Consultant. County has no responsibility or liability for payment of
Consultant's taxes or assessments.

{4) The total amounts paid by County to Consultant, and taxes withheld from
payments to non-Califomia residenls, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue
Service and the California State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Consultant shall
complete and submit to the County an lnternal Revenue Service {lRS) Form W-9 upon executing
this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Consultant's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work idbntified in
Altachment A. which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Consultant that the performance of
these services and work will reguire a varied schedule. Consultant will arrange his/l"rer own schedule, but will

06/04/2019



coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreernent will be
performed within the lime frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED L|CENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERM|TS.

A. {ny licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments for Consultrant to provide the services and work described in Attachmenl A must-be procured by
Consultant and be valid al the time Consultant enters into this Agreernent or as othenarise may be required,
Fufle1 during the term of this Agreement, Consultant must maintain such licenses, certificatei, and permits
in full force and effect, Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, drive/s
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business license!. $uch licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Consultant at no expense to the County, Consultant will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid iicenses, cerlificates and
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Consultant and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes ol
this Agreement.

B, Consultant warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in coveied transactions by any
federal department or agency. Consultant also wanants ihat it is not suspended or debarred 

-from

receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Proeurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: hg.#{{rrl}n1w"saln,,pqv.

5. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Consultant, for any expense or cost incurred by
Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Consultant in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Consultant.

f. COUNTYPROPERTY.

A. Personal Prone(v of CountY. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to bonsultant by County pursuint to this
Agreement ale, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exciusive property of County,
Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while iney are in
Consultant's possesslon. Consultant will be financially responsible for any loss or darnage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Consultant's negligence.

B. Products of Consultant's Work and-services. Any and all compositions, publications,
plans, specifications, blueprints, mapsr formulas, processes, photographs, $lides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio rccordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, wprks of art, inventions, patents, kadeniarks, copyrights, or
inteliectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are-the rcsult,
product, or rnanifestation of, Consultant's services or work under lhis Agreement are, and at the termination
of this Agreemenl rernain, lhe sole and exclusive property of the eounty. At the termination of the
Agreement, Consultant will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE REQUIREIUIENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVIGES.

For the duraiion of this Agreement Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and
amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

Gounty of lnyo Standard Contmct - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page3of11 06/04/201S



g. STATUSOFCONSULTANT.

All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent Consultant's, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Consultant, by vitue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf af
County. Exoept as expressly provided in Attachment A, Consultant has no authorily or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or emplolee of tho Consullant is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Consultant and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circurnstances be construed or considered to meate an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent Consultant:

A, Consultant shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provrded by Consultant under lhis Agreement.

B. Consullant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to Countt's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Consultant in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent Consultanfs, and not as employees of
County.

10. DEFENSE AT{D INDEMNIFICATION.

Design Professional/Consultant agrees to indemnify, including the cost to defend, entity
and its otficers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims, dernands, costs,
or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of
Design Professional/Consultant and its employees or agents in the performance of services under this
contract, but this indernnity does not apply ta liabilityfor damages arising from the sole negligence, active
negligence, or willful acts of the County; and does not apply to any passive negligence of the County
unless caused at least in part by the Design Professional/Consultant.

11. RECORDS AITID AUDIT

A. Records. Consultant shall prepare and maintain all rectrds required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Consultant shall maintain lhese tecords for a rninimum of four (4) years from the terrnination or completion of
this Agreement. Gonsultant may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records,

B. lnsoeclions and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, re@rds, including, but not limited to, financial records of Consultant, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Consultant.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otheruise evaluate the l*rork
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. HOHDISCRIMINATIOH,

During the performance of this Agreement, Consultanl, its agents, otficem, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employrnent, or p€rson receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, nalionat
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Consultant and its agents,
o$cers, and employees shall cornply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in lhe
Califomia Code of Regulations. Consultant shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.1. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

County of lnyo Slandard Contracl - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Pmfessional)

Page4of11 06/04/201 I



13. CANCELI.ATION

This Agreement may be canceled by Gounty without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Consullant thirly (30) days wriften notice of such intent to cancel. Consultant may cancel lhis Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any rcason whalsoever by giving lhirty (30) dap written notice of such intent to
cancelto County.

14. AS$IGNMENT

This is an agreement for the services of Consullsnt. County has relied upon the skills, knorr/edge,
experience, and training of Consullant as an inducernent to enter inio this Agreernent. Consultant shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County-
Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to becorne due under this {greement without the
prior written consent of County.

15. DEFAULT.

lf the Consullant abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a limely manner, or fails in anyway as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Consultant in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days
written notice to Consultant. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Consultant all amounts
ovring to Consullant for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

18. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be uraiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deerned to be a waiver
of any olher or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph tr,rrenty-two (22) below.

1f CONFIDENTIALITY.

Consultant further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Consultant in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Consultant agtees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidenlial, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Consultant only with the express written
consent of the CounU. Any disclosure of confidential information by Consullant without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Consultant in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unaulhorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto, For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. CONFLTCTS.

Consultant agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, drrect or indirecl, which
would conflict in any m€nner or degree with the perforrnance of the work and services under this Agreement.

{9. PO$T AGREEiiENT COVENANT.

Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,

County of lnyo Standard Gontract - No. 156
(lndependenl Consulbnt - Pmfessional)

Page5of11 06/04/20'1S



gain, or enhancement. Further, Consultant agrees for a periocl uf two l,ears after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any County, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with lhe County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Consultant by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in conlravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or ihe application
thereol shall not be invalidaled thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable,

21. FUNDIHG LIMITATIOH.

The ability of Counly to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten {10) days of its notifying
Consultant of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding, Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
two (22) (Amendment).

22. ATIIEHDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtructed from, by the mutual
consent of lhe parties hereto. if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

23. NOTTCE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreernent, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Consultani or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally serv€d, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

of lnyo:
Department
Address
City and State

Consultant:

s 155
Name
Address
Cityand State

24. ENTIRE AGREEMEHT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representalions, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherulise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect, Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unles$ the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

ilr ilrr

n

X

Caunty of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consullanl - Professional)

Page6of11 06/04/201 I



Dated:

AGREEiIENT EETWEEH COUHTY OF INYO

AND HEL lX Environmenl,al Plannino. lnc,

FOR THE PROVISION OF Prufessional SERVtcES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAYOF ,-

couHw oF NYq CONSULTATIT

By: By;
Signature

Michael CEO
Prinl orType Name Print orType Nam€

lu]v 22,2020Dated

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY;

County

AS TO

Auditor

AP REQUIREMENTS:

TO IREMENTS:

County Risk

County of lnyo Siandard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Prolessional)

Page 7of11 06/04/201 S

16th September 2020

Matt Kingsley

09-16-20



ATTACHI'ENTA

AGREEMEFIT BETWEEN COUNTYOF INYO

AIID HELIX Environmental Flanning, lnc.

FORTHE PROVISIOH gp Professional SERVTCES

FROM: September 1,2020

Please see Attachment: Scope of Work (SOW).

TERiI

TO: February 28,2022

SCOPE OF WORK:

Gounty of lnyo $tandard Contract - No. 156
(lndependont Coneultent - ProfessionalJ

Page8of11 06/04i2010



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND HELIX Environmental Planning, lnc.

FOR THE pROVtStON 6p Professional SERVICES

TERM:

FROM $eptember 1,2020 TO February 28,2Q22

SCHEDULE OF FEES

lnyo County will pay HELIX Environmental Planning, lnc., through a SB2 grant allocated by the California Department of
Housing and Community Development (HCD) to complete the tasks at the rates specified, as identified in Exhibit A Scope
of Work including the $chedule and Budget, and not to exceed $151 ,500. The County will pay HELIX Environmental
Planning, lnc. as the tasks specified in the SOW are completed to lhe satisfaction of lnyo County and the HCD. lnvoicing
from HELIX Environrnental Flanning lnc. will meet HCD's reguirements as found in the SOW included in Agreement
#1 gPGP-1 3356 {Attached).
The percentage of total payment shall not exceed the percentage of completed project at any time during the project
duration. Final payment will be made \vhen all work agreed to by HELIX Environmental Planning, lnc., as identified in the
SOW, is completed to the satisfaction of lnyo County and HCD. Costs incurred for materials necessary to complete the
tasks as slated in the SOW will be paid out of the $151,500 lotal cost of the contracted work and only for tasks included in
the SOW.

Qounty of lnyu Slandard Contract - No. 156

{lndependent Consultant - Frofessionai)
Page9of11 06i04/201 S



ATTAGHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUHTY OF INYO

AND HELIX Environmental Planning, lnc.

FORTHE PROVISION OF Professional SERVTCES

TERM:

FBOM: September 1,2A2O TO February 28,2022

SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND PER DIEM PAYiilEHT:

HELIX Environmental Planning lnc. will be compensated only for sxpenses incurred while performing tasks specified in

the Approved Scope of Work (Please see Exhibit A), Travel and Per Diem expenses will be paid out of the $t 51 ,500 total
cost of the contracted work and only tasks included in the SOW will be reimbursed.

Qounty of lnyo Standad Contract - No. 15€
(lndependent Consultant - Frcfessional)

Page 10 of 11 06/04/2019



ATTACHMENT D

AGREE]UTEHT BETWEEN COUHTY OF INYO

A{D HELIX Environmental Planning, lnc.

FOR THE FROVISION 6p Professional

TERf,I

FROM: September 1,2020 February 28,2022

SERVICES

SEE ATTACHED IN$URANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo $landard Conlract - No. 156

(lndependenl Consultanl - Professlonal)
Pagelfofll 06/04/201 I



Attachment - SOW

County of lnyo I eroposal to Prepare a Vacant Lands lnventory and Residential and Commercial Properties Review for Possible

Rezoning to Encourage Affordable Housing

Reliable informational organiration and a clear hierarchy to facilitate document understanding and

review;
A look, feel, and voice that convey the County's commitment to innovation, service, and

transparencY;
A strong portrayal of visual information to communicate existing conditions/environmental setting

concepts;

Easy-to-understand tables and other visuals to increase the accessibility of complex modeling or
resource-related information; and

Consistent mapping gestures and colors to clariff spatial concepts,

ln order to ensure further document quality, the following steps will be conducted internally:
1. Technical sections of the environmental document and technical studies are reviewed by the team's

senior staff member associated with the topic for technical accuracy and cornpleteness.
2, After technical sections and studies are approved by the team's senior staff member, they are

reviewed by the project management tearn for accuracy in addressing the specifics of the project,

meeting client expectations and compliance with the scope of work.
3. After project management team review, technical sections and studies are reviewed by the HELIX

Principal-in-Charge, who reviews for adequacy associated with current CEQA case laur and as a set of
"clean eyes" since this individual is not directly working on the project-

4, Final review consists of our technical editor, who checks for consistency in use of terms, facts,

references, grammar, spelling, and document format.

1.3 Scope of Work

Task t. Vnc*nt L*nds lnvent*ry xnd lnflll ffi*ue$*rpnn€nt #pp*req"lniti*s Affial\rsis

HELIX will support the County in analyring geospatial and tabula r data of vaca nt la nds and under-utilized
residential/commercial properties using County-derived 6lS data to identify opportunities to promote

increased residentialdensity (and, ultimately, housing affordability). The inventory, primarily compiled by

the County, will focus on vacant land parcels, including General Plan designated Open Space and potential

comrnercial infill areas, primarily located along the U,S. Highway 395 corridor. Farameters of consideration
will be determined in coordination with County staff but will likely include, but not be limited to: parcel size;

adjacency to public transportation and other public services; current zoning and land use designation; infill
opportunities located within commercial zones; and opportunities,/constraints for accessory dwelling units

{ADU) promotion. Once the parameters have been deterrnined and the results derived, HEIIX will create a

geodatabase of the resulting properties/parcels/rones. This tabular and geospatial inforrnation will be

compiled in a format suitable for presentation during the community engagement component, outlined
below. HELIX has allocated approximately 42 hours of professional staff time in support of Task 1.

Deliverahle$: GIS analysis in shapefile format.

T;rsk ?. {*mmuinity Eng*g*ment f*snpnign an*5 *l*ti** *f Fre6**rati**

lnyo County is home to a diverse public. Engaging the community about the proposed action will require an

open and transparent process that provides room for disparate opinions and robust discussions between
County staff (with support from HELIX) and local residents. Following the developrnent of the vacant lands

inventory and infilldevelopment opportunities (Task U, HELIX will assistthe County with conducting a

,{EE 

'X

*

,

d

G

+

frdfJne4xlEl Pjrrrlrg

Page 7



Countvoflnyo leroposal toPrepareaVacantLandslnventoryandResidential andCommercial PropertiesReviewforPossible

Rezoning to Encourage Affordable Housing

community engagement campaign to elicit feedback and comments from County residents concerninE the

proposed acticn. HELIX will staff and facilitate two (2) public outreach meetings (also to be identified as

public scoping meetings under CEAAI. Concurrent with the comrirunity enga8ement campaign will be

preparation and release of a CEQA Notice of Preparation (NOP) document to be prepared per CEQA

Guidelines Section 15092. The NOP will alert the Office of Planning and Research (OPR], public agencies, and

other stakeholders that an EIR will be prepared. HELIX will distribute the required number of NOP copies to

the OpR; the County shall be responsible for distribution of the same to local reEidents, as necessary-

tn support of the community enBagement carnpaign and the NOP, HELIX will:
. Present the vacant lands inventory and infill development opportunities analysis at two (2) public

scoping meetang to engage a broad cross-section of the community. HELIX team participants will

include Mr. Edgerton (facilitator) and Ms. Owning (recorder)'

" Prepare and submit a summary public scoping memo of public input.

HELIX will collect written and verbal comments during the public meetings and prepare a scoping report for

County consideration and use during development of the CEQA document and GPA. The contributions rnade

by community members will be essential to refining technical information gathered in the preliminary stages

of the project. Stakeholder input gathered through facilitated public workshops will be seriously considered

a nd directly integrated into the EIR Project Description during this iterative process, Upon completion of the

public scoping meetings, the HELIX team will prepare a summary memorandum based on informal notes and

feedback from the meetings for submission to the County. HELIX has allocated approximately 72 hours of

staff time in support af Task 2.

Dq{ttersbles; Notice of Preparation; Agenda and Presentation Materials for Public Scoping Meetings; Public

Scoping Meeting Summary Report {notes}.

Task 3. Stand-AB*n* ?**hni*al .lt*qii*s

HELIX's in-house technical experts in the following service areas shall conduct records searches, database

searches, and/or pedestrian surveys upon vacant lands and commercial infill development areas {identified

under Task 1) prior to or concurrent with CEQA document preparation. For environmental topic areas n0t

specifically identified as a stand-alone technical study outlined below, HELIX assumes that qualitative

assessment will be used as outlined in Task 4 {ElR).

Air QualitV/Greenhoure Gas Emissions

HELIX will complete air quality and greenhouse Bas (GHG) emissions technical analyses in accordance with

the requirements of the County and CEeA. HELIX will coordinate with the County to develop a hypothetical

(but conservative) construction and development scenario for the proposed project and then modelthe

scenario to develop the analysis. The analysis willinclude combustion emissions related to heavy-duty

equipment operations, fugitive emissions related to site preFaration and earth-moving activities, and mobile

source emissions related to worker and truck trips, we assume that cut estimates will be balanced on the

project sites; export trips are not envisioned,

Emissions may be estimated using a combination of models to include the California Air Resources Board

{CARB} EMFAC and OFFROAD emission inventory models and CalEEMod, along tc/ith project-specific

information developed in coordination with the County. lf the project-specific construction equipment a nd

schedule are not available, a generalized schedule and equipment mix willbe used based on the acreage and

*l.EL'.X
6n*sfin6slnl PiEiir{*

Page 8



Countyoflnyo lrroposal toPrepdreaVacantLandslnventoryandResidential andCommercial PropertiesReviewforPosslbie
Rezoning to Encourage Affordable Housing

dwelling unit count of the proposed project. Maxim um daily criteria pollutant emissions will be evaluated
and compared to the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District (GBUAPCD) State lmplementation
Plan (2015), ln the event that emissions exceed thresholds, mitigation measures will be identified to reduce
impacts.

HELIX will also quantify operational ernissions associated with average daily trips based upon proposed land
use trip generation rates derived from the lnstitute of Transportation Engineers (lTE) manual, gth Edition.
Maximurn daily and annual average criteria pollutant emissions will be evaluated and compared to the
GBUAPCD State lrnplementation Plan. lt is expected that a screening calculation will demonstrate that the
proposed project would not cause severe congestion at major intersection(s) resulting in a localcarbon
monoxide {CO} "hotspot." No dispersion modeling is included in this scope for CO analysis.

The air quality analysis will include qualitative discussions of toxic air pollutant impacts from construction
equipment diesel particulate emissions. HELIX willconduct a consistency analysis to determine if the
proposed project conforms to the GBUAPCD's general conformity regulations.

HELIX will quantify, to the extent practicable, direct and indirect GHG ernissions associated with project
construction and operation. The analysis will follow the current CEQA Guidelines for addressing global

climate change in CEQA docurnents and willaddress the CEQA significance thresholds outlined in the current
CEQA Guidelines. The analysis will include quantification of GHG emissions, as well as an evaluation of
potentialglobal climate change impacts based on current GBUAPCD guidance.

Deliversblesr Air Quality and GHG analyses in letter report format.

Biological Resources Evaluation

HELIX will prepare a Biological Resources Evaluation (BRE) to support CEOA documentation for the proposed
project. Studies conducted in support of the BRE will consist of a desktop review, a general biological
reconnaissance survey, a habitat assessment for potentially occurring sensitive species on the sites, and an

analysis of potential impacts to biological resources, as well as proposed measures to reduce and/or avoid
such impacts.

Literature Review, Dutabase Seorch, and Field Prepomtion HELIX will conduct a review of any existing
pertinent information on biological resources {i.e,, General Plan, CEQA documents for other projects in the
vicinity, if available| and conduct an in-house database search for sensitive species known to occur within
the property and vicinity. The in-house database search will include a query of the following agency lists of
special-status species: U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service; California Natural Diversity Database; and the California
Native Plant Society Rare Plant Database.

Vegetation Mapping ond a Eeneral Botdnicoll and Zoological Survey, HEIIX will map vegetation and
conduct a general botanical and zoological survey of the propertiesr including rnapping the locations of
sensitive species observed during the time of the survey (assurned to be spring 2A2OI. Plant and animal
species encountered on the sites will be identified to the taxonomic level possible at the time of the su rvey

The survey will include a habitat assessrnent for potentially occurring sensitive species but does not include
protocol-level surveys for protected or candidate species shauld suitable habitat be present,

This task includes habitat level mapping of potential wetlands and other waters (i.e., drainages) on the sites
for the purposes of CEQA analysis. A formal wetland delineation is not included, lt is assumed that

tlEf,_tx
l-&d$4nlenldl PJapli4g

Page 9



County of lnyo I Proposal to Prepare a Vacant Lands lnventory and Residentlal and Commercial Properties Revrew for Possible

Rezonlng to Enccurage Affordable Housing

potentially jurisdictional wetlands and other waters would be avoided by the proposed proiect and that a
formaljurisdictional delineation would not be necessary to support CEQA analysis.

HELIX will prepare a BRE to describe the methods of the biological studies conducted (as described above),

present the results of the literature review and fieldwork, provide mapping of biological habitats present on

the properties, assess the potential for special-status species to occur on the prope.ties or be impacted by

the proposed project, identifo regulatory issues related to the re$ources on the site, quantify acreages of
special-status species or sensitive habitats on the property, quantifu impacts to sensitive resources, and

recommend avoidance and minirnization measures and/or mitigation measures, if pertinent, This task

assumes one round of minor revisions from the project team and analysis of one version of a site plan,

Major or rnultiple revisions may require a contract augment.

Deliverables: Biological Resources Evaluation in letter report format.

Cultural Resources Evaluation

The proposed project requires a General Plan Amendment, which requirer adherence to 58 18 tribal
consultation. ln addition, the proposed project is also subject to Assembly Bill (ABl 52 tribal consultation.

Although these two consultation laws are similar in scope, they differ in practice and should be managed

only by a qualified cultural resources practitioner. Consideration shall be given to Natave American cultural

resources to the full letter of the law, as outlined below,

Cultural Resources Record Search. HELIX will conduct a record's search at the Eastern lnformation Center

(f tC) located at California State University, Riverside. The records search will include reviews of
U.5. Geological Survey topographic maps where archaeological sites are rnapped; Department of Parks and

Recreation (DPR) archaeological site records; data from previous surveys and research reports; historic

maps; the Historic Property Data File; the National Register of Historic Placesi the California Register of
Historic Resources; and listings of California Historical Landmarks and Points of Historical lnterest. The

records search will capture alldocumented cultural resources within 0.25-mile of the project

parcels/properties. This proposal assumes that EIC fees will not exceed $1,500.

Additionally, a letter will be sent to the Native Arnerican Heritage Commission (NAHC) requesting a search of
their Sacred Lands File for Native American sites or resources that rnay be within or near the project

parcels/properties. Usingthe Native American representatives list provided by the NAHC, letters will be sent

to each tribal representative requesting additional information or concerns they may have about the
proposed project. These letter requests are for informational purpoles onlv and are not part of the AB 52

consultation process.

Eulturcl Resource Field iuwey, HELIX archaeologists will conduct a preliminary pedestrian surveY of the

project area in order to characterize extant archaeological sites, artifacts, and/or structures more than 45

years old, The survey will consist of a pedestrian walk-over of areas where ground disturbance is proposed,

including a suitable buffer, using standard 20-meter paralleltransects.

HELIX assumes that no previously recorded or undocumented cultural resources will be encountered during

the surveys. lf cultural resources are identified within the project area, additional authorization rnay be

required for field documentation and reporting.

HELIX
ErylrcNftnnl,l fluftrl

Page 10



County of lnyo I Proposal t0 Prepare a Vacant Lands lnventory and Residential and Commercial Properties Review for Possible

Rezonlng to Encourage Affordable HausinB

Cultural Resource$ Inventory Report, A Cultural Resources lnventory Report, meeting the requirements of
CEQIT will be prepared upon completion of the survey. The report will include brief historic and prehistoric

background sections, the results of the records search and Native American outreach, culturaI Survey

findings, and maps depicting the project area and all areas surveyed, The report will also include

recommendations for further study, evaluation, or mitigation of any cultural resources that may be affected

by the proposed project. The report will not address indirect impacts {e.g., visual impacts) to cultural

resources located further than 0,25-mile from the project area-

Trihol Consultqtion Support. HELIX will assist in the adrninistrative tasks associated with tribal notification,

consultation, and documentation for SB 18 and AB 52 compliance. Working under the guidance and

direction of County staff, HELIX will prepare tribal notification letters for transmittal by the County {on
County letterhead) to the tribes; process formal tribal requests and scheduling for consultation with the
County; coordinate with County staff during the various tribal notification periods; and compile the
administrative record that documents 5B 18 and AB 52 compliance. This proposal assumes that HELIX staff
attendance at in-person consultation meetings with tribalor Countv representatives is unnecessary.

Felivenbles: Cultural Resources lnventory Report in letter report format

Itloise Analysis

HELIX's acoustical specialists will access and review applicable local, state, and federal environmental
regulations, including local noise ordinances, as part of a qualitative and quantitative assessment of noise

impacts related to the project. HELIX will conduct a fie,ld inspection of the proposed project sites, document

and photograph typicalsurrounding developments and land features, and measure current ambient traffic
noise. HELIX will identiff and consider applicable laws, ordinances, and regulations in advance of modeling
the measured and future + project roadway transportation volumes to evaluate exterior transportation
noise levels that would impact building fagades and exterior-use areas, Modeling will use the Computer
Aided Noise Abatement (CADNA) implementation of the Transportation Noise Model {TNM}, version 2.5.

Off-site traffic noise impacts will be analyzed for the following conditions: Existing and Existing Plus Project.

lf the transportation noise levels exceed the Community Standards at proposed outdoor usable area(s),

barrier locations and heights to obtain the required exterior use area noise levels maY be recommended.

Construction noise and vibration analysis will be provided qualitatively, HEtlx will prepare a noise model of
the planned new development, including project-derived noise sources. The results of the noise impact

analysis willbe presented in letterformat.

Oeliverahles; Nolse analysis in letter report format.

Geographic lnformation Systems

HELIX maintains a state-of-the-art 615 department that enables precision mapplng for both project-specific

and regionalviewshed required by the proposed project. HELIX will employ a variety of software to provide

cartographic a nd analytical output files in suppoft of the ElR. HELIX will employ sub-meter accurate global

positioning svstem (GP5) receivers to map cultural resources and sensitive biological resources present on

the project parcels/sites. Data collection applications, such as Collector for ArcGlS, will be used to gather

information in the fietd. The EIR will contain full color GlS shapefiles presenting geospatial information and

analyses for consumption by EIR reviewers and decision-makers.

HELIN
gn?iw/ilsd{} Fhtrrilfl

Page 11



County of lnyo I Proposal to Prepare a Vacant Lands lnventory and Residentlal and Commercial Properties Review for Possible

Rezoning to Encourage Affordable Housing

gelirrerg#Jes: GlS shapefiles suitable for presentation/integration in the EIR

Task 4. €nvir*nr***t*: lrnF*ct fteport

Administrative Draft Envirunmental lmpact Report

The Administrative Draft Environmental lmpact Report (ADElRl will be a site-specific EIR that shall contain

the requisite components of an ElR. including an Executive Surnmary, lntroduction, and Project Description

as outlined in the CEQA Guidelines Section 15168. The Project Description will discuss the goals and

objectives and describe the majorfeatures of the project. ln orderto assure that the analysis accuratelY

reflects all aspects of the proposed project, the HELIX team will work closely with the County in the early

stages of the ADEIR.

Project Description

The EIR Project Description will be based on the information gathered during preparation of the vacant

lands inventory and commercial infill development opportunities, as well as information generated during

the community engagemeilt campaign (Task 1), These data will be used to assist in development of the
project's goals and objectives, as well as feed into development of the project alternatives. The Project

Description will include a background section describing the goals of the SB 2 grant and the purpose of the
proposed GPA.

Alternstives
After the Proposed Project has been defined, in consultation with County staff, we will consider feasible
project alternatives. Alternatives would be based on County input. as well as stakeholder input (from Task 1!

and will he developed based on the need to avoid or reduce the potentially significant impacts identified for
the proposed project. We envision a total of three (3) alternatives, including the proFosed project, the no

project alternative, and an environmentally superior project alternative {assuming that the no project

alternative would be identified as the environmentally superior alternative to the proposed project).

Alternatives would be evaluated and presented in the EIR for public review and consideration bY

decision-rnakers. Note: if the environmentally superior project alternative were to be adopted by the County

Board of Supervisors jn lieu of the proposed project, no additional CEQA analysis would be required.

Cumulotive Imptct Anolysis
An EIR must discuss cumulative impacts if the incremental effect of a project. combined with the effects of
other projects is "cumulatively considerable." Such incremental effects are to be viewed in connection with

the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects.

Together, these projects comprise the cumulative scenario which forms the basis of the cumulative impact

analysis. Both the severity of impacts and the likelihood of their occurrence are to be reflected in the

discussion, but the discussion need not provide as great detail as is provided for the effects attributable to

the project alone,

For this project, we recommend working with the County to develop a list of past, present, and probable

residential and/or commercial development projects while also looking at the development trends identified

in the County planning documents. Large projects that have recently undergone environmental review

would provide a usefulstarting point to identify individual projects both in lnyo County and potentially in

Nevada that would contribute to cumulative effects. Other planning documents, as made identified and

made available to HELIX bythe County, would also be considered in the cumulative effects analysis in so far

as they may help define future land use patterns in the County. Each area of concern (e,9., agriculture,

HELIX
$YJ&nfir6{tu, Pkmnt

Page 12



County of lnyo I Proposal to Prepare a Vacant Lands lnventory and Residential and Commercial Properiies Review for Possible
' Rezoningto Encourage Affordable Housing

land u$e. etc.) will be addressed in its own section and will contain the five major compenents: lntroduction;
Affected Environment (including Existing Condltions and Regulatory Frameworkl; Thresholds and

Methodology; lmpact Analysis/Mitigation Measures; and Cumulative lmpacts/Mitigation Measures. This

scope anticipates the integration of all individual areas of concern directly into the EIR (rather than
preparation of stand-alone technical reports).

The following individual environmentaltopic areas would be assessed qualitatively and/or quantitatively

and discussed in the ADEIR per Appendix G of the State CEQA Guidelines;

. Ae_sthetieslVisual Fesourcesl This section of the EIR will evatuate whether implementation of the
project could result in significant alterations to viewsheds, visualcharacter, and lighting and glare

' conditions of the County. This will consist of reviewing current County policies and code provisions.

The extent of potential aesthetic impacts will be qualitatively described. We assume a less than
significant impact assessment would be made and mitigation measures would be unwarranted.

* Aericulturat Berourqes; This section of the EIR will evaluate whether imptementation of the project
could result in adverse impacts or loss of agricultural resources (temporary and permanent) in the
County. This will consist of reviewing current County policies and code provisions that address these
resources, as well as applicable state and federal provisions. The extent of potential resource loss

will be identified, as well as the extent of potential conflict with agricultural operations based on

consultation with the County and agriculturalstakeholders. Mitigation measures will be identified
should a significant impact be identified

* Air Qualiw/Greenhouse Gas Emisdone: See Task 3 for a detailed scope of work,
. Biological Besosrces: See Task 3 for a detailed scope of work.

" Cuttural Resqurcesfrribal Cultural Besogrces: See Task 3 for a detailed scope of work,

r EnerEy: HELIX will quantify the estimated energy usage for the proposed development related to
the project based upon the most conservative development scenario (i.e., maximum number of
residential dwelling unitr and/or estimated square footage). This information will be used as basis

for the GHG emissions estimate {outlined in Task 3), ar well. Mitigation m€aFure$ will be identified
as necessary and feasible.

o Geqlosv atrd SoilsjMineral Rerour(esl The EIR will provide mapping and technical information on
geologic and seismic stability of develcpment sites, including readily:available information on roil
conditions. This will also include identification of important mineral resource sites. We will review
and identify applicable federal, state, and county policies and regulations regarding geologic

resources. Mitigation measures will be identified, as necessary.
. HarardslHarardogs Materialsr The extent of the project parcels/sites that may result in or be

exposed to hazards/hazardous materials will be a factor that will be addressed in the ElR. The EIR

will identify and map both natural and man-made harards {e.g., wildland fires, hazardous

materials/contamination, airport overlay zones). We will review and identify applicable federal,
state, and County policies and regulations. MitiBation measures will be identified, as required.

r Hvdrqlosv and Weter Oualitv: The extent of the proposed project to impact surface water features
and groundwater will be a factor that will be addressed in the tlR. The EIR will identifu and map

surface and groundwater re$ources of the County. We will consult with the County's Water
Depariment and service providers regarding the condition of water rssources, as well as current
water quality and efforts to improve/protect water quality. This will include identification of land

areas where groundwater resources are limited and additional demand may result in overdraft
concerns. We will review and identify applicable federal, $tate, and County policies and regulations

f{g{,,x
Sfl r4@d{rtf ld-l Planil*tg

Page 13



Countyof lnyo I Proposalto Prepare a Vacant Lands lnventory and Residential and Commercial Properties Beviewfor Possible

Rezoning to Encourage AFfordable Housing

(e.g., implementation of National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit requirementsto
protect water quality), Mitigation measures will be ldentified.

* land Usc,ald Plannine: This section of the EIR will address whether the project and development of
the identified parcels from Task 1 would result in conflicts with the County General Flan and

associated plans that couJd result in physical impacts to the environrnent. An analysis of the current
General Plan land use and zoning designations will be presented in the EIR in tabularfashion,
juxtaposed against the proposed land use/zoning designation, HELIX will determine the potential

impacts to land use and planning qualitatively in the ElR. We will review and identify current County
policies and code provisions that address compatibility, as well as applicable state and federal
provisions. Mitigation measures will be identified.

* Ngise: See Task 3 for a detailed scope of work,
* Ponulation and H.ggsins; The primary purpose of the proposed project is to increase available

housing stock and density in the County to provide more affordable housing to current and future
residents. The project is expected to result in the potential development of approxirnately 120-160

dwelling units within and including up to 12 vacant parcels. lt is envisioned that this modest increase

in housing stock will not result in a significant change to population {or EIR impact} in the County.

r Public Services/Recreation{Utilitiel: The EIR will also address potential public service and utility
demands of the most conservative proposed development scenario {i.e., fire protection, law

enforcement, water supply, etc.). We will coordinate with applicable service providers and the
County to seek "willserve" letters for the proposed development. Potentialconflicts with existing

and planned recreation usesand activitieswillalso be identified. Mitigation measureswillbe
identified.

r Transnortationr HELIX will identify the average daily trips based upon proposed land use trip
generation rates derived from the ITE manual, gth Edition. As it is envisioned that the project will be

circulated for public comment in summer ?020, the proposed project must also include a qualitative

evaluation of Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT). We will utilize the most recent traffic volume data from

the County and Eastern Sierra Council of Governments {ESCOG} to describe current traffic conditions
of the County and near the project parcels/sites. We willreview and identify applicable County and

ESCOG policies and regulations regarding traffic and identify any mitigation measures required to
address potentially significant traffic impacts.

r Wildflre: The EIR willconsider and qualitatively evaluate the potential impact associated with
wildfire from the potential placement of residential dwellings within the wildland/urban interface.

HELIX has allocated approximately 338 hours for preparation of the ADEIR. The County will review the ADEIR

and submit one set of unified comments to HELIX. We will then prepare the public review Draft EIR {DEIR)

suitable for public circulation {outlined below),

Draft Environmental lnpact Report

HELTX will prepare and print the DEIR for public distribution and review after authoriration from the County.

ln addition, draft Notices of Completion (NOC) and Availability {NOA} will be produced and submitted to the

County for comment. After receiving a single round of comments frorn the County on the draft Notices, final

Notices will be prepared. The NOC will be filed by HELIX with the State Clearinghouse; the County will file
the NOC with the County Clerk, The County shall be responsible for publishing the NOA in the lnyo Register,

The Draft EIR willbe circulated via the State Clearinghouse using their electronic delivery system (cd-roms

rather than paper hardcopies). H ELIX has allocated approximately 148 hours of staff time for preparation of
the Draft ElR.

,4ELIX
tilvJ&n ioxif t i4trtd6{

Page 14



County of lnyo I Proposal to Prepare a Vacant Lands lnventory and Residential and Commercial Properties Review for Possible

Rezoning to Encourage Affordable Housing

Final Environmental lmpact Report (Reponses to Commentsl

Upon closure of the 45-day public review pericd, HELIX will receive public comment! from the State

Clearinghouse (via the County) and prepare draft responses to the comments. lt is envisioned that County

staff {including County Counsel} will assist with response preparation, Upon completion of the resFonses to
comments (drafted in matrix forrn)., HELIX will prepare and submit the Administrative Final EIR (AFEIR) for
County review. After review bV the County and receipt of a single set of unified cotnments, the HELTX team
will prepare the Final EIR (FElRl for submittal to the County. The County shall be responsible for distribution
of the FEIR, as necessary. The FEIR shall also consist of a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

tMMRPJ. The County shall prepare Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations {FOF/SOC),
as needed, with minimal input from HELIX. The FOF will describe each significant irnpact anticipated to
occur as a result of the proposed project and decide as to whether mitigation measures are available to
reduce each significant impact to below a level of significance. ln the event one or more significant impacts

cannot be reduced to below a level of significance, a draft sOC - identifying the social, econornic, or other
factors taken into consideration in the decision to approve the project despite unmitigatad significant
environmental impacts - would be necessary. HEIIX can assist with preparation of the SOC {alonB with the
FOF) with additional authorizatiqn from the County. HELIX will prepare a draft Notice of Determination

{NOD) associated with, and the County's decision to approve, the Countygenerated GPA language and

revised zoning ordinance.

HEIIX willpresent the FEIR to the Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors, County staff will present

the GPA and zoning ordinance language/policies, Assuming approval of the FEIR bV the County, the General
Plan will be updated by County staff accordingly. Note: HELIX has allocated approximately 80 hours of
professional staff time for preparation of the AFEIR and FEIR. Hours necessary beyond this arnount to
complete responses to comments (AFEIR) and the FEIR may require additional authorization from the
County,

Setrtrer,sffesr Administrative Draft EIR; Dratt EIR; Administrative Final EIR {Responses to Comments}; Final

EIR; MMRP; and NOC/NOA/NOD. All documents are to be prepared electronically and transmitted as Adobe

Acrobat PDF, Hardcopies of any document outlined above may be made available with additional
authorization of funds to cover printing costs.

Tpsk 5. Team lVleetings/trub{i* H*arings

HELIX will participate in a project kick-off meeting via telephone and occasional (no more than monthlyl
planning and coordination meetings as requested by the County. As outlined in Task 2, HELIX will prepare for
and staff two (2) community engagement meetings during the public scoping period. The community
engagement meetings will be staffed by Robert Edgerton {facilitator} and Lesley Owning (recorder}.
Additionally. as outlined in Task 4, HELIX will staff two {2} meetings in support of the FEIR in front of the
Planning Commission andlor Board of Supervisors. Mr. Edgerton will present the FEIR before the
decision-makers- A simple PowerPoint presentation will be prepared in support of both the community
enEagement meetings and the decision-makers meetings. HELIX has allocated approximately ?4 hours for
attendance at the decision-makers meetings.

Deliverable,s: Meeting presentations in PowerPoint format

ffg{.tx
filrir$nwfilal ill4nti*

Page 15



Countyoflnyo lproposaltoprepareaVacantLandslnventoryandResidential andCommercial PropertiesReviewforPossible

Rezoning to Encourage Affordable Housing

1.4 Budget/Cost Summary

We have provided a detailed breakdown of labor hours/cost by task for each staff member of the HELIX

team in Appendixc. Total project costs shall not exceed $151,500 without additional authorization by the

County.

1.5 Assumptions

The following assumptions are a key component of our proposed scope of work and approach to the

project:

o HELIX works on a time and materials (not-to-exceed) basis and has indicated the estimated number

of hours allocated for each task in this scope of work. Preparation of deliverables listed under each

task item requiring additionaltime may require additionalauthorization frorn the County'

r We assume that the County is seeking to identify the potentialfor approximately 120-150 additional

dwelling units within and including up to 12 vacant land parcels suitable for rezoning.

* HELIX assumes that the County will take lead on developing and refining proposed General Plan

Amendments and/or zoning ordinances, HELIX will coordinate with the County during initial

preparation of the GpA and zoning ordinance and review sarne for consistency and integration

purposes into the ElR.

* lt is envisioned that the two (2) community enBagement meetings shall be held in conjunction with

the CEqA public scoping period during two consecutive nights {e-g., Tues-Wed) during the same

week in Lone Pine and BishoP.

. This scope of work is exclusive of preparation of FOF/SOC, should significant and unavoidable

project impacts be identified during preparation of the EIR'

* HELIX assumes that preparation of responses to comments (Task 4) are limited to no more than

40 substantial comments {requirlng preparation of no more than 10 pages of tabular responses}'

Comments beyorrd this amount may require additionalauthorization by the County.

c public comments shall not require HELIX to conduct additional database seafches, records searches,

or field investigations. Additional irnpact analysis is also envisioned as being unnecessary.

r HELIX team does not envision having a role in the adrninistration of the County's SB 2 grant award;

coordination with HCD is not included in this scope of work'
* HEL|Xwillforego preparation of an lnitialStudy and conduct an analysis of each environmental

factor identified in CEQA Guidelines Appendix G directly in the EIR'

* preparatjon of the proposed GpA and/or zoning updates shall be undertaken primarily by the

County, HELIX will provide a technical review of proposed language as requested'

o lt is envisioned that the proposed project would not trigger the requirement or need of a water

Supply Assessment to quantify potential impact to ground and/or surface water sources.

* Visual simulations or architectural renderings of proposed project developments are not included'

* H ELIX will coordinate with County staff to determine the qualitative approach to the VMT analysis as

our firm does not have in-house traffic engineering capabilities.

2, Sch e dule

The project team is committed to complete the project in the time frame provided in the Request for

proposals tRFp). The proposed project schedule (Ioble I below) anticipates consultant selection and

tlELtX
fngi{nd,{i}faj F'lorsrtui}

Page L6



Countyoflnyo lProposal toPrepareavacantLandslnventoryandResidential andCommercial PropertiesReviewforPossible
Rezoning to Encourage Affordable Housing

contract negotiation in late January 2020, consultant team project initiation/Notice to Proceed provided in
February 2020, and project completion in December ZO2O. We have incorporated the Countv's schedule
outlined in the RFP, with modifications to accommodate staning Task 1 in February 2020 rather than
November 2019 (a three-month laS). We anticipate confirmation of dates with County staff during contract
negotiation.

Table 1. EIR Schedule

3, St*ffing

HELIX's environmental planning staff members have expertise in the preparation of CEQA compliance
documents for a broad range of public and private development projects. HELTX staff have worked
extensively for public agencies throughout California, and specifically in lnyo County since 2013, Many of our
team members should be familiar to County staff havinE worked on several projects on behalf of the County

over the years. Our staff have the technical knowledge and local experience to help guide the County
through the community engagement, land use planning, and EIR processes. A Froject Team Organization
Chart is presented in Appendix A, and below is a summary of our approach to organization and staffing.

Staff assigned to the project are highly qualified and have proven experience in the land development sector,
land use planning, zoning, and environmental analysis, The organization chart (AppendixA), identifies our
entire ProjectTeam in relationship to the County. Resurnes for each key staff person are included in

HE,LIX,
6it!lmnstrtal Plrnnri0

Task

* Tesk Naree Produrt{r} Du* $ate [2820]

T
Vacant Lands lnventory and lnfill
Development Opportunities Analysis

Geospatial database (HELtx) February 28

General Plan Amendment and zoning
ordin ance lansuage {Csuntv}

March 6

z
Community Engagement Campaign
and Notice of Preparation

Notice of Preparation March 13 - April 10

Public meetings in Lone Pine and Bishop March 9 - 13

Summary public meetinE, report March 20

I Stand-Alone Technical Studies

Air quallty/Greenhouse Gas Emissions AprilL5
May 15Biological Resources

Cultural/Tribal Cultural Resou rces May 15

SB L8/A8 52 Consultation Support April-JutV

Noise April 15

Gr5 April-July

4 Environmental lmpact Report

Administrative oraft EIR June 1

Notice of Completion June 21

Notice of Availabilitv June 21

Draft EIR Julyl-August15
Administrative Final EtR {Response to
Comments)

September 1

FinalElR September 15

MMRP September 15

Notice of Determination December 31

5 Team M eetings/Public Hearings

Team Meetings Monthlv
P[anning Commission hearing November-December

Board of Supervisors hearing November-December

Page 17



County of lnyo I Proposal to Prepare a Vacant Lands lnventory and Residential and Commercial Properties Review for Possible
Rezoning to Encourdge Affordable Housing

Appendix B of this proposal. Each person's responsibilities/areas of expertise a re summa rized in Table 2
below.

Table 2. Key Staff Responsibilities/Expertise

Bespantibilities

Lesley Owning, Environmental Planner

John Del\4artino, Senior GIS Specialist

4, Qualif icatinns

HELIX's Environmental Planning Group staff will provide the lead contact with the County for the contract
and has extensive experience preparing the full range of environmental documents pursuant to CEQA, The
group has completed more than 1,000 environmental documents in compliance with CEQA for many types
of prcjects, incl uding:

Key FersonnellTitle

Robert Edgerton, AICP CEP, Project
Manager/Pri ncipal P lanner

David Claycomb, AICP, Principal-in-Charge, QA/QC

Daniel Van Essen, Environrnental Planner

Tim Belzman, Senior Visual Resources Specialist
and Land Use Planner

Stephen Stringer, Principal Biologist

Clarus Backes, RPA, Senior Archaeologist

loanne Dramko, AICP, Principal Planner and Senior
Technical Specialist

Victor Ortiz, Senior Air Quality/Greenhouse Gas

Emissions Specialist

Charles Terry, Principal Acoustician

r Development of residential subdivisions and
their associated utility infrastructure

r Mixed-usedevelopments
r lndustrialand officedevelopments
r General, Community, and Specific Plans (and

amendments thereto)
c lnstitutional facilities such as universities,

schools, churches, and ccrrectional facilities

ffEr.rx
tfl{d&,ofihi ,}hnn*rg

Primary County Point-of-Contact and EIR Lead

Oversight and Qe6|i1y Assu ra nce/Qual ity Co ntrol

CEQA Preparer (Environmental Planningl

CEQ$ Preparer {Environmental Planningl

CEQA Preparer {Aesthetics/Visual Resources and Land Use

Planning)

CEQA Preparer (Biological Resources)

CEQA Preparer {Cultural Resources}

CEQA Preparer (Air Quality/GHG and AcousticslNoiseI

CEQA Preparer (Air QualitylcHG)

CEQA P reparer {Acousti cs/Noise}

Gts

Shopping centers and other commercial
developments

Hotels

Hospitals and medica I office facilities

Fire stations, parks, and other public transit
facilities

Roads, bridges, and highway transportation
projects

a

I

*
a

t

lncluded in this section are project descriptions and references for recent HELIX projects relevant to the type
of work that will be required to prepare and efficiently manage the EIR and technical studies for the
proposed project. We invite the County to contact any of our references to confirm our team's qualifications

Page 18



County of lnyo I Propasal to Prepare a Vacant Larrds lnventory and Residential and Commercial Properties Review for Possible

Reaoning to Encourage Affordable Housing

lnyo County Vacant Lands lnventory EIR

Cost Estimate

1ELH T.ABOR

fr* I Ta8lr 2 TrC< ! Tr& a Trcr 4.2 TrC. A Ttd( 5

TNTAI

Vrcrfit
L.nddlnfill

lnffita Anlur

l{gF tof
Fublic

g6$tna Tech Shrdicr ADEIR, Bnft EIR RfClFinal EIR

pcrEos
if..ti^dc lll

tifie
tr*$pd
sdnc!ltS

tnncipel Plsnne(

"dfictgsl Plaflner
itmiid Acotrstician
Scnid Flannsfigls
ir!!{r Pr@t Mana$er.
Sr AO Speisli8t
ia*(0nrfigrl*l PlaFntr I

3&'rior Ar€|aodogisl
stE ArchsedotJst
F6n{ip0l Biotosi$l

3id@sr rll

Sr. Gl6 *Fs*rslist
{Vcdd Pr€caessr
&*llcsl

Rrts
is30
$?20
g?nq

sl95
E*S0

$13S
dits
518S
is5

31.$6

sI@
$1s0
t85

$60
s80
{ai

tlour' Coaa

t6
80

10 sz.r00
rw
-$$

!4 33,r1S-*
-tB
-18
-$0
-$0
-tn
-t0
I $t,ads
-i0
.*fi

liglm C€d
-90
"$s

3? Sr.0{g
-$0
-$0

40 33.til0
-$0
-s0
-<n
'${

t!
-t0
.$0-ss

in

flGulr

16

I
rQ

e4

?2

IG

60
r$

;

Cr.d
ts

t884
53.5?0

{n
Er.{gc
t?,cas
$?.68S
t5.t$s

$0
s?,6,10

$6,@
s3.040
{&.?!*

g0

s1.600
3n

Hour.t Cut
I $1,849

i{
40 E8.8m

't0 8r.800

"s0
130 316,9e0

s
-94

80 $7,800"s-t{
-t€
-!{
's!

40 $3,200'3r

Hogn
I

?4
16

{o

'-:

?0

Cesl
$1.t40

@
}}.1€v
$3.120

50
3$.?@

q

s0
s3,800

id
6

t0
s
f{t

8r,600
tdJ

Hgu'r
4
4

16
4
4

35

{

;
{

.

Coa
$s
ss*s

$3,580
Er80
t880

t t6g{
s0

$680

s
$660

5t
t?98

!c
s€
s!
t

Ho0r! CoEl-ss
.t0

71 3F*2&
s0

t8
$0
s
$0

s
t0
$a
s0
w
tn

80
ra

uuotsl t{ELs( Labof {2 56.800 ?2 S1?.4{! 272 A*Z2A 338 56 1{8 $1$,4{0 60 ?4 33. grs 31st.38t

TOTAL

Stern (+4?00tp61solrrDs!r)

on Exgenses

HELf.X
:irit'tirn!riii l;4aiifi *

Page C-1



Arracnllcrrl - A8,rssment # l.:r-r(rr-[ JJJI'

STATE OF CATIFORI{IA- DEPARTIIIEI'IT OF CEilERAL
SERVtCESgllrflDlffi|r sffi?rruaq Prncrqf,oafii$flFlil.Et#l|
flioillF.oflal9 $fa*i$il
r, lli trFilrl I .lffi tt mr h affi ,cE rd h Em r3s fr
oilInlfiHcterrrfl E

rPtErFilr 0F llolrSlr€ lllD ffiruiltFr oEll:mFEm
c{rrn crffi8ilrE

CanUCft!
2lbhnd0jlrgElrfh
8TTf,T OAIE

l4firI{COAFDU|I
fHFqFHEllDMII

1Ztrrffil
t, Ilr rd;rl ru|td|llr fgllrf h

frfi,m.0
a. Tr ilri 3f b {t|fr f,t h hilr rtil rrdbta il ti t-rlI dltf, 

't€r 
n t' rfl r*ra.rs r Fr dh l{rllrL

ENTENB TN.E
Edtl^ Aatlu, ftlpilrd$caldt.bt
ElUl i#thlrdffiFtutbrr
E{ff Cr Sra d trrt ffi fbrr rdecrdilar
EdSID F$Tnrrndffir
ed{ilE tldlGldllonr

TO'IL ilUHEER OF PASES AITAETEO

!fr Jbtt Pt rr rllt f| er n*l ,,E/tr.'H bf t*tr rt r* F C f rytlr'l f f Grt ffi 'nrrfismdrfilLrandrl nsdtiir.ilrlrr,prld,snrsnr

H WIilEOg TfrI{EIREOF, TI{I8 FREEIEIIT TIAS EEEII EXCCITIED FT IHE PAMffi EEIE
gt nFni

OOflfR gtUR l{AilC (l otlrl hrn rr lrdtrlCud, rut rtdr r olpiltrd. p.ft'flJp#Bl

Qolnuoilnlo

co{rrTFtcroR grgttG8s rDuREgs
nO.EqgrnrrrL

FRNTEd HAilE OF PERSON grONlHO 
.

LlilLre."-1Rc-krr .-.k

CA B!2!

PreE
z
I

gfE.wfit
t
0

1t

ctTy
Irffcrfrlo

brrr:

rmE

E

Planning Director

E/rrf >a8lgil ruRE

coffin giFtoAoEl{cYMllE

oltrltffitt C lffrhe rd Oarn unry Orffir ilt
COIfiRTIfl II€ AIIEIft Y ADDREFE

fuolY. EicrtrFAvr,, gul llo
PRII'IEO t{lTE OF PERO(N gIf,{IiE

8Fd*Rttt.lwi

cnv
8H]ffi

OAIE 8XilED

STAIE AP
F{ 5fi0
TlnE
Cfllsl fh{lt
tuhnlGatglrrHBnlrtr

NT TEoFOrUrotrm

OOTITRACNK} AOEilGYIIJTHOFI'EO gGilAIURE O^TE flO''ER

enn AF''ilT(n-',**,r*-pJ n l>ilad

Errrpl p; scr lftt I {.oar.l Folt rrts td tftal%1l



County of lnyo
lSPGP-I3356

Prgn I of 2

EXHETT A

AUTFOiTTY. FURFO$E Altp SCOPE OF WORK

t. arsge

2-

Puunnt to l-l€'dth end Sfrtl Cofi rau:tlon 50470, rubdhirlon (bXll(A), thr $trtc d
ftllfornh Drprfincnt d Hulrl4 rnd Gommunlty Darhpmcnt (lhr 'lbprrtncnf or
'$itrtG') hrr afirHFtfil hc Phnning Gnnh Prugnm ('PGP,' or the 'Prugrnm' r drfrnsd
h $atilon 102 of trc Gulrlcllnct) fur Local Govrmmrntr rnd Locetltu. Thlr $trndmd
Agrufinant, ebng wlh rll lb rxhlbib (thr'Agrurntcnf), lr rrtrnd lnto undrr thc auhulty
of, rnd ln fuittrcmns sf, Ure purporr of lhe Progrnm. Punuant b I'hrlttr and $rftty Codc
Sfiilon 50470, rubdhtuhn (dl, ns lhpanrnrnt har lerucd lhc funrlc Hll 2 Phnning
Gnnh Progrrnr Yaar 1 Guldcllncr (lhr'Guldcllnrr'l dqicd Dtcmbar 2018 gpwmltU ttc
Pmgrem, rnd e Nolhr d Fundlng Aveilrtrility fNOFA'l ditod irlanfi 28, 2019.

Busrr
ln redgncc rrrlilr lhl rufrrorlty dtad rborc, lhr Grenhc her btrn rtedad llnrndel
ssbhn€ in thc lbrm ol a gnnt forn thc Plogrrm. Tht Dcpaffnrnt hrr agracd to mellt
tha grm to po rtle finenchl olrbbnca for ths pruparation, edopllon and lmpbmcohtlon
of a plrn fior Accalurdrp Hornlng Pradudlon'rnA Sfcemllnrd Hourlng Pmducilon (s
ffi h $*ilon lm d hc Guldrllnrr! purrusnl io thr brmt ol hc Guldallnar, the
NOFA and thb Agnonunt. By crffilng frto ttrts Aercsmant rnd ttrsrubl rcctf,0ng hr
awad d hc Progrem funde, tra Gmnh tgrffi to oxnpg uulh ftG ttrini end conditlonr
d thc Guldellnee, thc NOFA, tlrlc Agnemont, tho rtprt*ntdons conbln d h hc
appllcethn, atrd ths regrdrumanb of $c authorfi cltcd abovu. Bf,rcd on thc
rspra*ntafrons m{d6 by frc Grmlee, thG Slats rhall provklc e grent h tlte emount $cwn
in Ert{bit B, $edmr 2.

Drtlnlflone

-

Terrp frcrein shall hsro $6 sema maaning aa dgflnldons in Srdlon 1tl2 dftt Guilclina.

$com of Woft

Updets plannlng dmumcnts, erllllrmant prosssar rroning odinrnec in rccoldrnee
urih lha Grmtae'r $chodrh F: Pn{cct Tlmdinc and Budgct, er provldrd b,y illc Gnnm
in thc $B 2 Plannlng Grar* Ptogram eppllcrilon rccd fur rubccqunt $Fruvd by tn
Dapartmcnt.

Dltrfimnt Gonirrc{ Coor{lmtot

Thc Contnd Coordlnrtor of ihlr Agrucmrnt for ttre Dcpntnrrt h thc Hotclttg PdKry
Dovsloftnfftt ilhnagcr, orha Henagc/r dolgrru, Unlan cthamlrr lnfomrd, eny

Phnnhg Grrb Pmgnm (FGPI
HOFADab: ilaftfi20,2018
ApptElS IS: Or"tober 17,2010
Ptsp. h; Daurmbcr 8. 20lE

3.

{.

s.



qountf uf'tnlu
1s!FgiF4Agm

FHE2s?2

Hmlffifr

Rgtr , rlpa{t or otttu ummq4lcdq Fqull:d hr ffrlr-Aqymilfi rhnll br fltiltd br frt
'fi;'"lf uiht a.ffiffi;dffiilfrifr trqordlnntdr st lhs hllotttltU sddrilr:

Ilrfrttnant rnd Communl$ Eernl'oPmant

9lmtno zu
Sfl$rrnaflts,

P. O. Bpx gse060

Snclsmcntn, G* s{!92-!0s0

PLnning Gltltts Progrun IPGPI
ilOFA,EeEt xlarolrt8,20tg
Apgruvtd Iffi OGbfrGr 17,2019
n'r6p. OaU: It@rnbor 6, 201 g



I

County of lnyo
TTFGF-I3358

Prgc I of5

CXHIBIT B

EUDGET DETAIL AIID FIYTEilT PROVISIOilS

ioollcrdon lbr Fundr

A. Thr Drprrtrrcnt h ontrdng lnto tfilrAgrtement on thr bnrb of. end ln rullenc on
fict;, lttfometlon, tuartonr and rupmantatlonr contrlrcd ln thc Appllcetirn rnd
rny rubcequtnt modlllctilonr 0r ddltlom thrrdo epproved by fu llaprftnant
Thc Appllcitlon end any rpprovrd modlllcrllonr snd eddltlonr thlrulo eru hcruby
lncoryoreted lnto thle Agpcmrnt

B, Thc GrrntcG *rmnb lhrt rll lnlbrmatlon, ficfr, lclcrtlonl nnd npratntafrmr
aonhlncd ln tht Appllcrdon rnd rpprowd modlHlont rnd dltlonr tfututo aru
trn, con*t, end ccnplcb to lhc bert of 0rc Gnntea'e knorla'dgc. ln lhc awnt
thrt rny prrt of tha Appllcetlon end any eppruvod modlfrcrtlon rnd rddlfon thscto
is unhru, incortct, inaanplrte, or mliicrdlng in erch e msnmr lhet nould
subrhntlally elierilthc Oapitrncml rpprcvll, dlrbunamcflt, 0i m-onl$dtfl of thl
funding end ftc grrnt or icfrvltlcl govdmctl by frle Agruemcnt, thc llaparffirnt
mry dedrru a bruech hersd end bka ruch adlbn or puruuc rrrch rumrdlat sr rnr
ptu,tlrd for brseah haraof.

Gnnt rnd,Rdmbunrnrnt llFlt
Tha maximum tohl smflmt gnarrted and ruimburseHa to tha Gnntm prruuant to tlit
Agruemont rhall not excesd 1160,(n0.

GnntThrcllnrr

A Th6Ag6amsnt b Gffihn upon approyel bf all partice and thc thperfrnol!.fiddl
lr avirlancetl by tts dutc rlgncd by tp llepertmoni on pogG onc, $trndetd
Agrmrtt€nt $TD 213 (hi'Efrtdirm Data').

B. All Gnnt tunde mugt bc epended by June 30, 2022' '

C. Ttro Gnntae ehall deliFr to ttn Drpertrrurt all finel irmlca ftr nrlmbuE0mant

on or bgfpru F*rury ?]8,2M11, to enturu mcrfrng thc Juno fi,2A22 dmdllnr.

Und6r rpadal clrwmstrn€a, at det€ilfllnad by fto Daplilfllcflt, tht DtFf,ttflsnt

may modrff fts Fcfrflrery 28, 2022 dcadline'

D. lt lr ttrt rmponelHlity of fita Grentae to monltor thc p'toJsct and tirnclinsc of drswr

wlttrin lha Wcdtlcd drttr'

2-

3.

Flenning Grtnb Pmgrm EgPl
HOFA thta: XalUt 28, 2010
Apprur,cd nabl OfiDtr 17,2019
Prgp. [tst"l Dacm[u 6, ?;gig



County sf lnyo
1s+GP-lsr5a

Pagc 2 ofS

EXHIEIT B

L Allorebh Urr olBnnt Fundr

Tht Dffettiltnt rhrll rrot rwerd or dirbuna fundr unlar it ddrmilu Errt thc
grentfundr $allbc ugcndcd ln comfllencrrrltlr lhc tamr end pmyldoru of thc
Gtithlha, th. HOFA end trir {gnrmcnt

Cirent lunds rhrll only bc urad by ttrc Grenbc fu piolrd ediyifia rpprevcd by
Ote $latt thet lnyolw he pcperrtlon and rdoplion of Frolrd rctlvltlc ea lEtd in

thc rcopc # work, ptgFd dccaiptlon, Fojrct timslirp end ofrcr pfir of ttc
epplicrtlon, rnd cllghls *{iviUaa rnd ursc puouantto Articlc lll olttc Guidalitu.

GrEnt fundr may not bc urcd br rdminlffrtiw coetr of pcnonr cmfloyd by thc
Granbe for etilyldcr not dlrudf rehlcd to thr preprre{on rnd rdoptim of thc
propmod rdivlU.

B.

c.

A

H.

D.

E.

Thc Grantc shall ura m morr thrn 5 pcrtffrt uf thr toid gnnt unoultt lor cottr
rrltrd to edminbtnllon of thc proJrd.

A Gnnbr lh$ rrcalwr fundr undcr thlr Progrem mey uta r rubconfrctor. The

rubcontrre{ thrll provila for canplirnca with nll the rlquirumcnb of ftt Pmgnm.
Thr rubcontrec{ rhrll not rslicw thc Grnnbe of itr rutponriHliUu undu tp
Program.

Afrerthc contrad has baen elseltod by tho D4nftnent and ell pstu, eppmtrud

and eligible coffi br Cigitrlc ac{irdllee may br Eimbuntd brthc pn*rct(r} upon

complelim d dcliwnt{as ln eccofdlnoa with Schoduh F: Pn#d Tlmolirp end

Budgd and thc Statrmcnt of Work rrrd rubiad to the tsrme end condltlons of thb
Agreemcnt.

Only opproved and Clgltlb codr lnerrrd formqg&I_ftt HOFA fib, onflnuad
psBi ttle dgte of txtculirn and euphnca of ftG Strndsd Agrufitt tt end

bmplabd during the grant ttm wlll bc nlr$urrrbh.

4ppmwd and eliglble cmts incrrred lflg1 to ttc NDFA drb eru irpllgltth.

F

G

5. Prrlbn0rncr

Thq Grenba ehell tC6 elctr estlonr, Fry ilJch oxptnlc!, rnd do rll thlrqf_ncanrery to

eornplctethc rcopa of wulr rpeclfrrd ln AmUtAend rr incorporfrdtf iltt $82 Prognm
appticetitn ln ocnordrrrcr nilr Ura rt*rcrluh for comfldon st lodh thcruln rnd nithln thc
bmr and mndlthne of 0tir Agrcartaflt.

Plrnnkrg GrEnE Prugnm (PCF)
NOFA [hn: llgctr 28,2018
Appmtrtd Dm: Ociobar 17,2019
Pnp. Dabl D@mber$,2019



c.

Counf of lnyo
lSPGP-l3358

Prgs 3 of5

EXIIIBIT B

Fbcrl Admlnhlrdon

A. Thc Gnntt. lr ltcponriHe h melnteinlng rcmde h'hich tulty dlrdocc thc
rdiultlar tundcd bf ttc PGIP gnnt. Adoqueta doarmcntation for arctr
ruinburgHt hrnrc'tion rhrll be mrintelncd to prrmlt ilrc rlsbrminrtion, ftrorrgh
en rudlt lf rrqudad by ltu $tetc, ol ltt ecflrscy of fic rucodr end thc
alloweblllty of cxpandltunr drrryatl to PGF gnnt fundr. lf tlrc ellowatfllty ol
cttpcttdltura crnnot be drtsnnincd btreura ncodr or doomcnEtlon art
indcqurb, tha cxDcndituru met be dhrllurud, rrd fia Strb rhsll datumlna the
rrimbumanrcnt mstffi fur the smount dlrallonud. The StElr'r drttmlnrton of
the ellowebillty of srU axponm rhall be flnrl, abmnt fraud, mldrka or rftlhrrlrurr.

B. \,Vlod( mus be compbtttl prlorto raqrrldlng Fimbunsmlnt. Thc l}rPorfilail mry
mdrc cxcrpliont to ttrb Fruirion on s.era by crrl bellr. ln unuual
cirurmrtanca, the Dcpeltment rnny sonrldcr rltrmrilw amngrmrnh to
rtlmbunanort rrrd pryrrrcrrt rnrlhodr berad on documentafon damonrffilng
cntt budenr, induding fic lnebflfi to pey lornnrlr.

C. Prior to rtcaMng ruimbumernent, thc Grnrtbt rhrll rubmlt tho followlng
documantEtlon:

1) Gowmmant Agrncy Texprycr lD Form (GovTlH: Filad tutt);

2) A Raqrnrtfor Funds on e form prov{dad by ftc [}cprrtncfi rnd

3) Ary and all documentrton ruqusetcd by the D.Frtmmt in thc brm and

msnrur m outine'd in tha following tubccction D.

D. Grerrtec shall subilil all ruquirud ruimh,rnrmcnt documcntrtion to ftG following
addrell;

E.

Drprrtnenl of Hqroing end Communlty Dcvalopmant
Honlng Policy Darulopmcnt

Lsfld [h. Plrnniru Unlt
Ahrnlim: PGP Prcgrrm llanrgcr

2020 ftct El Crmino Aventn, $ultc 500
$ecnmanto. CA 95033

P. O. Box 952050

. Sacnmcnto, CA S{252-2050

Tht Gnrfic rhrll rubrnlt lnrdccr for rulmbunement tt tha tlrprrtmcnt mrding
!o fic fulldnfu rrfiadula:

Planning Gnnb Plogrsm tree1
HOFADeb: f{anfi28,2010
npprovaa Dd: OtD'blr 17,2010
Prup. Dfr: Drcmbu6,20lg



F

Goun$ ol lntn
lgflsP-i3358

Prgc 4 of 5

ETI{IBIT B

{} At mexlmum, onot Pat qurilt4 or

2l Upon ggmpldon of a dclhrnblc, rubfcc'ttoiltc tlepertmcnfr rpprcval;end

3) At mlnimum, onc lnvoicl br ndmhrncmcnt annually'

Tha Drprrttrclltwlll urt thc 2019 crlenderyter bcglnnlng with Jnnuary, Hith firtt

tquc*l for plmbumammt accapied on or eltrr Scptcmber 30, 2019.

The lqurrt lbr rulmbumment murt br for a mlnlmum of 15 prront { I"
me*muh grrnt emount Bwrrdod. ftrc oaporment Tey^T.Ekbr exqcqgonr to llp
mlnlmum snqnt taqttcttxt on e .""+-U-i* httF. 4! lnvoictt ehell rufrranc
tftc snt1A nwn#-im irrrrf 56 *dli rnO ruUmittrd to xrc Dcprrtncnfs
ilo1?nm tt3negcr ttthc eddrs* p11vdfi rmo tn S"Aion 6, llcm D ot E*tlbtt B'

tnvilc6 rhell liclude d e minlmu-m thc followlng ln{brmetion:

u

2)

3l

4)

Nertce ol ft€ Gmntcc'r ptrronnel pcrfu nnlng lvorf ;

Delne srdtlmca of Prolec.ttnrk;

lbrn[cd co3$ ln eccodrnca wi[1 ilrc schcdula F: ProJ$t Timellnc erd

d,ffi 
"nd 

Slntcm;t* C Wo*, includlng ldcntificetion.ol crdt crydoyge'

oontiraAor, iuboonbadof strfiwtro provUiO rorvicao during ftc Fc{od {ry
il,roicc, tb numUei * troutc end hourty $ac br cgcfi of ha Grrntcc'r

lmproy""t, *nrtaoriJ) sub{?.lpleit(r}
.ffiilfti. e,rtto,iotd 

"ip"tt 
*wtttr 6ceipts, end confldtot, rub'reci$ant

and subcorrhador inwics; end

Any ottrar doormsnb, certilicatione! or wkbnce *6mcd nrcp6qsry by ttc
Ospartnrant prluto dirbursamant of grant furds'

G. Ths Drperffient wlll drnburse the Granho dirrcdy fior nll allo*rblc palcti oFb
;-ffiili ee thi Dapertmerrfs fircel Proqadurue p3rm1 upon rtcal* of g't

itamizsd rlgrred irtwice.

Tho thpfrlment reegnlzs hgt budgcttd dtliuwHe rmounb ara b13ad upon

acftndi3. Clrenb66 mey ruque;1, ln wrlting, e budgst frftffirunt
UJn.r.Ufo ru$gqr U nninan rppnovel bf Utc l)cprrlmcnt, er lottg rc tht tohl

hJ{ggt dom nol cxotd ths maldmum lmount ewardad to tlp Grantat'

GrNnt fundt cennot br dlrbuncd untll thh Strndrrd Agrurmcnt her bcn fifly
axecutd.

H

t.

PlEnnlrE Gfeltb Pfof,nnt (PGP)
HOFA IEb; Hrdt 28. 2019
Apprwad Dtr: Oc'bbr 1?, 20lg
Prup. Drb: Dwnbrr E, 2019



J.

K.

Cuntyof lnyo
1TPOP-13350

Prgc 6 of 5

EX}IIBIT B

Grunt fund prymcrfi fll bc mdr on r mlmbunrmant lirlr; rdvrnca Frymcfltt
rru nol dlond, Thc Gnnbo, [b lubcontrsctor rnd Cl Frtftm, mud hrnr
rdqufr cmh llow b Fey ell gnnt-rulrtad rrycnrat pdor !o ilqrmtlng
rulmbunrmfit froflr tha lhpeftnont. Thr tlcprttnrnt mey conrhfir dtrmrlhru
rmng.nrcnts to rulmbunemmt rnd pf,ymmt mdhodr bard on docummletlon
datnonthilng cort budrru, lndudlng thc lnabllfiy to Fey hr *o* purruant to
Suillon 60f O of ttrc Gddellmt.

Thc Gret*rc wlll bc rerponrlblt lar comdllng rnd rubmlUng rll hvolcel,
rupporfing dmrmrntedon rnd laFortlng dmrmcril. lrwolmr murt ba
rmrnprnlcd by rrpordng mrtcrhlr whcnr rpp'mpdrle. lnwlor wlftout ftc
eppmprlilr lrpoillng mdcdeh wlll not br peld,

1) Suportng documantNdon m6y lndudc, fu1| ll not lknitcd lo; ptllqltera
odtrr. ruccip. progrurl pryrunb, rubconhrdor lruskcr, frmaqrd"r F
rny oUrrr db$tiltfttdlqt-ei OcrncO n€aq611ry by th! tlrpsfimnt b
euppott thc rulmbunrmcnt to thc Grsnta ftr expandllurur lnarrd.

Tllc Grsntcc uill rubmlt for plmbunsmrnb to ftr Dagrtfficnt brrcd on ldurl
mb incurrrd, end mud blll lhc StNtc be$d on elrr rnd canplttcd obpdhrG
and delhrunblu ru outlln€d lnthe appliceton, in $ctrrduh F: PrqfcctTimcllrurytd
Buc|gd, tha Stalrmmt of Wd, rridror eny and rll docurncntrton lncorpornrd
into trlE $nndail Aorramant end mrdc e pfft llpruof.

The Dapsrhant mry dttfiotd 10 parctnt sf trr grnrrt until gnnl tarml haw btGtt

tulfillad to lhc rslirftdiott of hc tlepertmcnt.

L.

lr.

Plrnnhg Grafib Pmgnm (PGP!
NOFADIi; Hrdt2S.2019
Approrrd Dsb: O&Drr 17.2019
Fmp. DqU: Drcmbr8,2010



Counly of |ttYo
tsPoP-lt3tc

Pfir 1 ol8
EXHEF O

POP TERNT ATID COHDMOilS

l. Eugflu

A. Duilng thrtm of thr thndrd Agrrrmrnt thr Gnntcr rhdl rubmlt, upon ilqrnt of thc
Dcprrtmrnt, r Frilonlnoe npori thrt dcmonrtntn rrilrfidlon of rll lrqdnmcnte
Hrntlllcd ln tfilr Strndrr{ Agrurmrnt.

B. Upon cornplrtlon of rll obJrc{tvu rnd rhllyrnUu nqulrud to fulf,ll lhlr contnd_trrnurnt
lo Schrdulr F: Profrd Tlircllnr rnd Eudgrt rnd thr Ecopr of Wofi, EdilbllA, Stdlon 4,
rnd rl trflrttd to ln ErhlHi E, Scc{lon 0, rublrdlon K, wlthln thlr StrntlrdAgcmrnt,
thc Gnntc rhrll rubmlt e frnrl clorc oul rrport ln rcoordrno rllh Sccdon t0f,
rubmatlon (b), rnd n lnrrudrd ln Attrdrmrnt golthc tlrcmbcr 2018 Plrnnlng Onnb
Prognm Guldallmr. Thr dorr out nport rhrll bc ruhrlttrd rrth hr f,nrl lnvolct by lhc
cttd of thr gnnt trrm n llrhd ln Exhlblt B, Srdhn 3, rubmdlon 0.

Accounllno Rrcordr

A. Thc Gnntcc, lb rtrfl, contrrotoo rrd ruhontrc{sn rhrll rrtsDlbh rnd mrlntrln rn
rccountlng ryrbm rnd ruportr thrl propcrly rcnrmuhlc lncunrd prcJrd ofi B llnr.
The rmurrtlrw ryrtrm ihrll mrrftm to Oancnlly Aff.plrd Acmuntnf, Pdnclplcr
(GAAP), rneblr thb debmlnrton of lncurrud coob rt lntcrlm polnh of comphilon, fltd
provlth rupport for rulmburtcmrnl pryrrunt voucicn or lnmlro.

B. Tha Gnntto mud artabllrh e rrprntc lrdgr mmunt for ucrlplr rnd cxpcndllurcr of
gnnt fundr end mrlntoln rxprndltun dctrllr ln rooodrncr*ift h. rcopr of tutlt, proltct
tlmcllru rnd budgct. $oparatc banR account! m not ruqulrrd.

C. Tha Grentce shrll melntaln docrrmentrtlon of lb normC procuunmt pollq rnd
compdllw bld procos (lndudlng thc urc of roh roura nrfimltn), rnd flnrnclrl
Ecords of cxpendlturur lncunrd durlng tha cruruc ol tti pm|rcf ln rccsdrno r*ttr
GAAP.

l.

D. Tha Gnnbc aElti ftrt lht rhtt or dralgnrbd rupmcnilthru rhrll hrw hr rlgtrt to
ruvhr and to spy eny noOrdr rnd tuppottlng documrnhtlori prdrlnlng t0 UE
pcdomrnca of ttc $tnndrd Agrucrnrnt.

$ubcontesion cmployad W the Onntes ard pdd rlth monap under hc brmt of thlr
$temlrd Agruarnont rhrll bc rrrponolbtriormrlnhlnlng rccountng lwdr r rprdfud
ebovi.

Al any llmc *rlng hc tsm ol thc Strnderd Agracmrnt, tlrc Depeftirnt mey prrlonn or
ctuto to bc pcdormrd e finrndrl rutllt of rny rnd ell phrrer of lhr ffinl. At tlc

E.

3. &dlr
A

Plrnnlq Gmft Prcgmm (p6pl
NOFAfrb: Hrtrh eg,20lg
Appolrod Dnh: Odobrr l?, 201 g
Prup. Dah: Drcotnbar0, 2019



County of lnyo
1*PGP-i3958

Fegc 2 of8
EXHIBIT O

Drprhunfr rqucd, ht Orsnbr rhrll pmv{do, rtllr s*tt rxp.n ., t frnrnchl rudlt
prup.ttd ff e mtlllhd prrHb rccoulfint. ThG S'tatt of Cellfomh hrr thr dgtrt to rwltu
prqid dmlmGrtt end conducil rudltr durlng end ovcr thc pnofac{ llh.

1l ThG Gmnlil e$t6 thetthu Ocpartmont or tht lbpafinrnft dclgru rhdl hrw
tha rbfrt lo mvlm, obtdn, nnd copy all mcordr rnd ruppottrp doamcntrflon
prrhlrtngto prrllormrncc gf thlr Agnamnt.

el Tht Gnnlur qrtce b provl& tha thperhncnt or thc Dcpsrtmcnfr daCgn*, rlth
rny nrlrvent lnforrn{lon nqmrted.

3) T?p Grrntlo rgrail to parmlt tha Dcpartmtnt or thc Dcprftncnfr dcdgrm
mtrurr to ltr pranrirac, upm mranrHc noflsr, durlq normd hnlnan houru for
0rr rurposa d lntcrvlcfllng amployma who mlght mmnebly how lnfonn$lon
rulrhd toil.Eh rrcorde and hcpecffng end coHylnf rudr bookrr ltoildl, lccotlntr,
rnd ottrcr matrrial trat may bc Ebvsnt to r mrttr undor lnucrdgrtisn hr fic
purpoce ff datrminlng corirpllrnm sith ltshlbt, Prognm guirlrllmt, rnd tttb
Agrautrcnt.

lf r finrndrl audlt lr nqulrud bt ft€ Dcprftnant, thc rudlt rhall bs pcrfomstl E- $
irxhpsndrnt arlillcd WEm aeaumnt Sclac{lur of en lndopardirtt rudlt llrm rhdl be
conrimantrrrur procunmrnt dandrdr contsirpd in Ex?rlblt D, Sadlon I rubracilon A. of
thb StandardAgnemrnt.

1) TtF Granba rhell notifu h€ Dapsrfncil of thc sudhols name end rddnet
immodletqty afrer ths c€lec{ion har bccn medo. Thc csntsrd for the audlt rhall
ellow rose by thc Dcperffisnt to tha lndepcndart snditofr rrorfth4 Fspon.

2l Tlp Grantse ir recponeiblc for thc comphfon of atdib nnd all oorfi ol praparing
audlls.

lf thcru gm audlt lindhgt, lfu Grentse must submlt a datsilsrl ruponsa sccapteHc
to fic Dcpeftmgnl for oech ildit flndlng withln 00 dayu lTon ttc datp of tha audh
ftnding r€porl.

C. Thi GrEBttc {r€os to msHein such nrcordt for poedhb rudlt aftcr final prymant
pnuent to ExhlHt D, $adlm 3, rubnsdlon E, brlow, unh* s longpr pGfiod of rucordr
ruhntlon h ciprlffid.

1l tf any litocthfl, cldm, nagotaflon, rudlt monltortp, lntprdlon or drcr ecff0n hac
b*n s1flud balsru ttrr oplrdion sl thc lwulnd rtcold rdrnffon prrlod, ell
rucordr murt bc lffilnrd by trc Gnntrr, cotilnctort snd rub+nhrcturu until
compldion of hr ec{on end rrrolution of ell iuuat rrfilch arlre ftrom lt. Tfi
Gnntrc shrll hdud. ln any contsact ttrrt lt mtun lnto ln sn lmount cxcacdlrg
110,m0, thc Drp*fnonfr rlghl to audll tht conFector't rrcoilr srrd tntav|ur lhelr
amployrs.

Flanning G nb Pmgnm (PcPl
HOFA Drtp: Hrrdr l8,20lg
Appmtad Dsb: ffibrr t7,201S
Prup. Dota l}twrnhr 0, 7O1Q

B.

3)



a.

Courfi ol lnYo
t9+GP-r3it50

Prgc 3 of I
ETHIB|T D

2t 
ili.fff $f';l'J:#1'tHt*"n?ffin#,,? ffiffi.??'ffil"ffiif';
ContrEdt Codt $adlon 10115.10.

D, Tho drtrrminegon by thc Dcpaffncnt ol thr digiHltty of any cxPandilurc rhell be finrl'

E. Thc Gnnt|6 rhrll rutein dl bookr end rrcordr ruhnnt to thb-Agracmcnt hr r mlnlmum

or-tlttrneycd-afttttrarnoJrniumotthdistilm'S;f 5flp$#S;illJ?il:al huOtU or li[grton relaYrnt to lhlp;$grurmcn
conclurion or rtrolutlon ol thc matbf

RrlTrdhl ol Hm-nillormrncr

A. Any dtrpub concemlng r quadon of lact $+ltg.qnd?T 
iltE-slldlrd Asnemail thrt lr

not dlepcttl of by ag*€ffint-ih4a 5" d*tdt? ry qi Ocnqtant't Hqurlm Policy

Darrlopment Manrycr, ot'iiJilrnagafr Oglgn-' 
"tto TLy comldrr rny tnltrn or

uaftelanHgncerubmlbd;;iffffitttt'ffii;dlronottrrDaoertncnt'rHottctB
policy gcvltopmrnt Mantp; or Daalgnm ti,tii il t Oapeitnbntr ffnrl dcclrlon

rrgerding thc dirWb.

B. Nelther thr pendcncy ol a dlspgte nor ih enridcrstlon by [tG Osryrtmcntwlll sxcutt ih6

Crrantec ftom li,rlt eno timcly-iirrormenoa rn Grdsnca'*tttt tri urmr of thlr $underd

Agrucment.

C. ln the event that it Ia dctarminad, at ha soledhcrutlon of the lhff[ilont' tllt h! Gtentcl

is not meeling llu Ennr rno bnoitions ol ftG stenderd Agrlcmcnq immcdirtaly upon

,"o*nl l-ffi; ;ei* fromlhs-Daesrtmint to stop m{ the GnnH thell cre'; ell

rvork under the slandart riiccm"rn rir" o"prnmrnt'nar ttp rola dtmrrfion to dsbrmine

that ft€ Granttc meeh di;rd;no conuitionr ffiar a alop *nrk ordar, and to filiYcr a

ra;itta,, 11gi6j to trc grantra to rttumc worft und61 tho $trnd.rd Agr$nnfit

D. Balh the GrErrtae and fie D,epartnent Jleva 
tha dgmto qllljnfr qF $nnd3ld Aercffi€nt

* 
"rry'i#;oo,1 

g0 oayr 
-'firurn 

ndice. Ths frttca rhall rpecity_ttn ltslon hr early

brmination and may p#it il't; g.nt"" * ttro Dco'rm"S ti rfitrfy eny d"xdenqliot
pror 6"# 

"rdy 
ffi"'tnrfr;;"fr. The Grentor wtil rubnrit any lqurtird documenc to

tre ocpenmant'r'tttrln 30 dayr of the eerly ttrminsthn noti(t'

E'ThclEmurtbrsttfollgimpbmcrrtrfiion@mporu4frT.qfun6dedvl$FppqFi'
progrern, indudlng, whd'ipihfrls'h, serdnent by_thc lp"lry to 16nnelly rdos th'a

mmplsbtt p{annlng Ooormffi f-Lettiir-thst do nofiormntly rdo$ fic tundtd adiuity

couti lr rr,riulea to rtpayment of tha grent'

F. Tlrafolowlng rhellffoh condiilta ebrurdr of thlaAgrlGmont:

1l Grurrttc,l feilut to comply wifir eny ol hl brm errd condi[onr d tr'P Agrutmcnt

zl Ulc of, or parmlfrng tho ure ol, grrrrtfurtdt providcd undcrthhAgntmcntforany

Plannlng Grentr Prugrrn (PGPI

NOFA DclE: Malth 26, 2019
AppGtEd Deb: Oebbr 17,2019
Prup. Dab: Dtcilnbrr 8, 2019



tr,

County ol lnyo
lSFGP-I3it60

Fege 4 of I
EIHIBIT D

lrrllghlr coctr sfurrny ectiv{ty nol rpproyud undarhir Agrucmcnt

3l Any falur to ortrply wlltr tlrc dcrdllnu ret forth ln fib Agrucmant unlcrt epprurud
by ttts Fnfatn Mrnqar.

ln rddllhn b rnyoilrcrrurdlarthet meybc rvelhblebtlrDepeilmcotln lnroroqulty
fpr brtrch of tilr Aglnrnent, hc f}tplrtrtsnt mry st ltr dlmton, cnrdrt the lbllotlng
rumodbc:

1) Dhqurllfy thc Grrrilcc fiom applying for futurs PGP Fundr or ohcr D+arhrunt
rfiilnlrtrrud grnnt pmgremq

2', Rcvoke erirfing PGIF rffird(r] to thc Grantaci

3) Reqdre tho rutum of moprrdsd PGF fundt dlrbuned undar thlr ngrucmcnt;

{l Requira rupeymcrrt ol PGP Fundr dbbuned rnd cxptndcd undcr thb agmemcnt

5) Stk s couil odcr hr rycdfic priloman* ofhG oHlgdon drhulbd upott, qlhs
rppolntnarrt of a rucetrbr to cimplcte tlr obllgrlionrln eccotdrrpc utlft ha PGP
Pmgnern pqulrumanh; rrrd

Sl Ofrrcr rsnrediru eyaillHe at hw, or by rnd thru4h thir ryramant. All rumedicr
wsil$e to thc lhpailnrnt aru q,rmuletn and not axdurive.

7) The Daparfircnt mry ghm wrltten notha to hc GrenEa to cutl tha braldl or
vidation wlhin a pcdod of nd hts than 15 deyt.

5, lnfimnlicrton

Helthar ttp Depailmrnt nor eny fficar oramploycc hcmsf it teporulbla for eny lnfury, demqp
or liaflllty oqrln'ng by nmmn of rnilhFn dona or omlttsd to bc dona by ttl Orantta, ltt oflicaru,
crnployuar, rgonb, ltr contrac{org, lh qlb'ltdphnh c its suboonfactoru undar s in connadion
riilr any rurlq autfrority or Jurhdldion mnhred uFon tha Gmntac undtr hh Sttnfird
Aglembnt. lt Ir undarstood and rgned lhrt th€ GrailEc rhallfully dchnd, lndcmnlfy rrrd sstt
hCrmlasfrre EepertmmtendelloltheDopeffitent's rtrfifrom nlldrhnc, utitr orrcflonr of overy
narng, klnd rnd Uaedptfn bmrryht lortr undtr, lndudhg, hil not llmlhd to, hrluour, Gotltuclual,
lnverus oondemnetion or ofipr lhaoriea or ecaarlionr of llat*lity occurrlng hy leamn of any&lng
dono or omlthd to be donc bt ho Gnant*, ltr offioaru, tmployrcr, ryenb canfrldom, attb
rcciCcnb, or rubmnhadnt undar thls Stnndsrd fuiumant.

0. Wrlvrn

Ho rniyar of rry bnech of ftb Agrltflirflt dretl br hdd to bs a nelrrur ol sny Frior s cubcaqupnt
braectr. Tln biluru of thc llaprrm.orrtto rnlqrr rt anytima ths Frovlclonc of lhlrAgnamcnt, s
lo l4ulru at enyffmc, porfonnenc by hG Grrntac of thr!6 prw{rlonr, ahrll ln no wny ba

Phnnhg Grsflb Pmgram (PCPI
HOFADab: tsdrz8,2019
Apprortcd Dab; Ofrb.r 17, 2018
Pmp. Dab: Dscsmblr E, 2010



ll

Gounry of lnyo
lSFCF-13358

PrOc 5 sf8

T

8.

. EPIIEIT D

conrtrurd b br r rrly;r of rudr govlrlonr nor to rllrct thl velffi of thlr Agramrnt or thl rlght

of fto Orprrtncntto artfstathrrt Ptwlrlmr.

Rrlrtonrhlo of Prilrl

It lr orprue1y undtntmd thnt thlr $trndrrd Agmemcnt lr an {ilsncnt _rragilrd Et Nnq

l*tuntm fiCryrnecntgovrmrrrrrhlsnlftlcr entt ts notlnhndedto, rnd rhrll nstbe mnrtsucd

to, crrio hc pkrtiomhp e rgsrtt, lafient, employrc, partrrarrhlp, loJtlt Tntull or tsodttlon,
oreny dtcr rrlrtlonCrlp *trebotwr otlrorlhan thrt of rn lndapandent prfi'

Thldfrrtu Gonbrsll

A. Al rtilctowmmlni fundsd Proqrrumtlfi lttuct bc condudad ,rri,rg .1 tL'-S
compcttttri pmcu6mrtt FfoH;. ftru Cnntrc mry u;g ih own Fmc!ilmnt pwadura
m 6nE at lltc proctOu'rrr compty wlth ell Cltyi$ounty lm!, rylp.rnd ordlnenaat
gorrm-ng procunimcnt, and alt ep'pt-tcrUte provlrlone of Crllfrmle rtstclm.

B. Any conbrct cnbrud lnto g e ruult of thlr Afltcmcnt rhall mntrln ell ilr purldorn
sUiu6* il ilta AgnrGmint to Ur rpplrcgblr to f,re Grnrrtcct rub+ldpltnb, conttrtoru,
and rubcontsndgh. Cophr C dff rgr*mclfi wtilt cub+lclticttb, conflclt, and

aubcontrac-tort murt br rubmttbd to tha Depeffitcnfl progrlm rnen{Er.

C. The Departnent doae not harru s contrsdurl relrilonrhip Hih qE Grenbc'e euts
rrciCcnfu, corrtrsdorE, or eubconEec{oru, end tha Grenha ttrell ba fully tttpolttibla for

all wofi padorm6d by'rtr subrucipicnb, AOntadut, or lubcontractoru.

ln thr syent tha Granba ie partrerirrg with anothcr judrdic{hn or formlm e collaboratva
ffirt bdhffin thc Grenbc and ottnfjudedidiorp rilro ut gnnrilccc of thc $B 2 Plennlng
Grants Prcgmm, tha Grantee adnowlcdgos thd emtr prrtrrr ard/or rll entlin ftnnlq
hs SB 2 Plinnlng Grarrb Progrern mllaboretiw alt in mut"isl ufilttcn ElE lltcnt with racfi
other but an conhsctuslly bornd to ths lleprtffi un*r reperata, eniorc.eblt
conbsctE-

D.

E. ln the mnt the Grnntso b partndng wlth anothcr jurird'xfion or furmil4 r collabarlive
sfiort with olher arrtitiea thut err not gnentco! of ho $B 2 Planniq Grr$ Program, tfie
Ilcprrtnent ghall dtrrto ho pruvlsionr at rrdsd in $$stdions 6tB) erd E(C) of lhie pnrt.

0. Conrolltnct rrl4 $trb rnd FedonJ [rwr. RqlFr9lil{qllntl rn{ Rraulrflonr

A The Grentsc ilr€ff to comdy wtfi ell ffi gnd lbderrl hwt. rulae ard l:gulatonr thet
portain b mmhudion, heal[r and reiety, hbor, felr anploymcnt pmcilcc, 6qurl
opportrnlty, end all oilpr matbm appllcaHc to hs grent thr Grerilcc, lh contecion or
subconfldoru, end any othcrgnent ecilvlty.

B. Duriry ttr pcrfurnerm of thic Agmcmrnt, tha Grenbc erlurtt thet no ofitaruise
quallfled prilotl rhall ba erdudcd from prrtitipelion or crndoynrcnt, d.nH program

Phnnlng Granb Progrem (PGFI
HQFA Drb: llanfi 28, 2019
Approvod Deb: ffib€r 17,2019
Prcp. Dale: Dmmber O, 2010



c.

D.

E.

10. Lltorton

B.

EnllElTD

ht;fitr, or b ruScdad to dhshlnrton brrrd ofl noa, elor, fliffi!, ndonC origln,
!rr, gcnd.tr, gcndrr ilhntity, gcndar erpranim, gcnrffc lnfurmffin. rge, dlrrhlllt!,
hrndlcep, ftmllrl rffinl, illlglon, or btlid, Lndfi rny Fmf,rrm or ediYi$ trdtd by ttb
contrld, rr ruqulcd ry nila V'l ot ftr Clyll Rlehlr Art of 1S{. lhr FJr tlottrlnf, AEt (12

USC 3001-20) end rll lmplemcntng rcguldorn, $rd iln Agr Dhcdtnlmdon AEt of 1975
rnd ell lmplcntcntry rquhfronr.

Tha Grantrr rhsll lndudethc nolrdimrlmlnrffon snd comdlrna ptttfiloftr of fltts drua
ln ellrgncmfibx,lft ltr rub+tdplrrfr, conbrdor, snd rubcodtldul, rnd rhrll lndudt
r nqulnmant h e[ rynrmarfi'wlt]r rll ol nma ttnrt mctr al hilfl In trm hdub lha
nonOircrtmlnrihn rnd complhnce prwlrlonr ol Urlr cbuc ln rll cotthch rnd
urhronbrdr ficy enbr into to pcfqm uork undrrth FGP.

The Grentca rhdl, ln thr munr ol parlormlng Frqic{ mrlq Mty_ gortlpty $ft fu
appllcablc prorirb# of th. Amcrtcffi uitttr urruttub AEt (ADAI of 1990, whl$ F*lbltr
Aiicrtmtnrtion on the bmb ol tllrrbltty, rr nrll u rll rpflbJbh rugulrilmr rnd guldrllna
luuad pmurnt to lhc ADA, ({2 U.S.C. 12101 et Fq.l

Thc Gerrtcc rhrl rdopt end lmplalrrril ffirmilw procelrar rnd proorfiff firt pwldt
lnfonnetion, outrdr rnd prorndon ol oportrrr*ffil ln thc PGP prolact to-Onoourret
pcrtdp{tion ol rllprnonr irOrrOnlr otrica, eolor, nrtonrlorlgin, ru, rullglon, frmlllrl
iUtrn, or dlrrHlltt. Thb lncludm, hrl lr not llmlbd to, r rnhorlty ru[rrh prognm to
enguru illr lndurion, ls ilrc modmurn crtrnt posdbb, of minorlthr lrd tumcn, lnd
anllfrcr ilncd bg minorttlor and rumrn, s nqulrd by 2{ CFR U-9S1.

Cor/nry of lnyo
1*PGIP-I3956

Prgr 6 ol I

lf rny pmvishn olhir Agrscfirsnt, u rn unlcrty'lng oblh$i(il, b lt5'lnvr[.] bf e coult of
compotcnt jufirdicffon. uldl lnvelHlty, st ttc rob dhcrulinn of h. DlFiltmnt, *trll not
ffii any ilrrr prwirbnc ol fiir *gnrmrrrt grrd lhc rumrindu of fft Agmmcnt rhrll
rumain ln fullfrrua rnd afbd. Tlltrfotu, hs prodrlmr of hb Agtuncnt ru, rnd rhell
br, dramd rcenUc.

TtE Grflrtlc rhsll nffi h. Diplffntnt lmmatfirhty ol rry clrlm or rcflsr undrlsltcn
by or il1rilt lL wfik$ trfi or mryrfhd thlr Agmmnt or-thr hpgtncnt, rnd rhrll
dfc nrofr edinn slft lupad to thc deim or fffrm u lr conrbffinft ttt tnflr of ftb
AgrBcmant afirl thi intrnrb otftc lbpsrfrncnt

A.

ll. Chrnort ln TrnnrlAtmndmrnb

This Agruimsnt may only bc rmon*d or modificd U mutraludtbn egmmcnt ol bdl pe fiar.

11. $trh€ffirdm
A Dsfinitiom

Phnntq GnnE Prsgtrm (FGPI
HOFA Drb: Hardt 28, 2019
Apptorrud Dab; Otbhr 17, 2019
flttp. Ilah: I}tcamhr 6, 2010



County of lnYu
10+GF-1t356

Prgc T dA
EXHIE]T D

1l l,Votlt:

Thc roft lo bc dl6cily or lrrdrrcily poduced bU fhc Grrnlrc, ftr.arnnt-+rc, or by.rnd. ol

flir Gnrrti'r conUriofr,'nrbcohtrrdor'r rni/or rub<adplent'r amploylc undrr ftll
Aglamcrt.

2) Wod( Prcdud:

tr;1 ftlpunb51 crrrtrd or producad tiom Worfi under thb AgrEmrnt lnduding, lut.r'ot
lknl11d lo, 11*filt irrO O*lyinbb *nilhrad or mrds, or mst lrrttrfbr Eonodud or

rndt, rltirr mlclt orptrUy-drn Crtrn aurrng th; tunr gt trq ryr.clnq,t rnd durlq r
n"rrod ol rlx moniln rnrr Uri tcrmtn*lon mn#, *rlctt ltlehr to fir Wo* commhrlonrd

} pcrft?mtd fnd; Urfr ni#int.**oft Prudud lnduda rll dtllvrnbhc, lnnnilonl'
frnovmonr, implwamcnb. or drr worla d ruttroohlp Gnrrbt rndtor Onniee'l

conhrdprtubcont6fir 
"nil* 

run-r".ipfint mry conc*tp'of or d|ltloP lnftl c'PT" of

thtr Aorrcncnt, ntrathct or dt-thbii lfnfUi ftr patcnt, copytlglrt, F*bmft fnda
secrat or othcr legrl prctuilon.

3) lnwnllonr:

Any ld6!t, metlodologlc, dsrfint, concrp( ,ttchnlq1n, lnttnthn, dhovery'
lrnimrrrrnt or darulopiini 11gg3{61i of pdrti4lty m16g rglqly by qP Ggntn or

i,uiruy Hlth trr Gnnbct c"tth,fii, rulaordraor rd6r rr.t rudpirnl rnd/or Gnnbc'r
-mntlertor, 

urbmntrador, aldlor euUruUplcnt'r rmployut flih qtc or moru cmplgy?sg

of g1. Oaiatrunt dudnd itrJtcrm of rhd Aerwm*rt rnd ln prdbrmrno of.*[ IYorlt

undsr trll lgr*rmnl p*riOed fiet dthcr th- conmflon or ruducdon lo pncdct !4"f
occ,lt" *,rtni ttp Urm'ot thir Agrrcment end in perlonnarm of Wutt hilJtd undrr h'n
Agltfincnt

B. Onn€rrhlp dWorfi Hoilct and Rights

1) All mrt Produd dfilyad by tts Woft patumcd by thl Gnnbc, itr anployw or
by and of tho Gmnt€e'e conffio/r, rubmntrmio/r_ erdlor rub+rtipicttft
c;npby335 underth's Agrucrncnl, rhsll b. ffinrd bytttc Dcperbncnt rnd rhall bt
coiridrr*b baworlrr mdcfurhin bytheGlrntrr rnd thrGnntse'r entldot
rubconbactor rndlor ruhrudpient ftr tho Deprrtmnt, TID t}lpf,rmtfi rhEll own

ell coryriglfi in thc work Prudud.

Zl Granbq, itramployrcr and rll of Gnntra't ffntado/t, cubcottFttchfe ard rub
oipfanit 

"*pl'od-.grua 
to Frpdually arrign, rnd upon crualhn of 3adr lYofi

fmOuA auhmaticelly esignr, to thr thprrtment, wmcrahip ql rlt Unltsd St|hg
rnd lrrbmatlonal cofyrStrtr tn rech qnd 6rrry l/lbrfi ft,'odud, lrpstffr ar any-rudt
lrltdt Prcdud, by opirdon d |ru, mty nd br mnritcrrd worlt mrde hr hiru by

thr Gnnbr'r oo-nlrador, tubconbEc{or rndlor aubrudplonl liom thl l}cpeitmcrn
Frun tlme to Umc Upon tht t}6pNilnnntt rrqu6tt, the Gnnt$'r cotrtrdor,
nrbmntredor ndlEr eubruclplenb, and/or ltr anplofsr, rhallcanfirm rudt

Plennlng GrentB Prognm (PgPl
ilOFAffi ffiizE,2010
Apprur€d Deh: O6brr 17.2019
Pnp. Deb: ftwnbffd,2019



Countyof lnyo
1T+GP-i3350

Pegr I sl I
EXHIBIT D

errlgnnrenb by axaqltlon md dcllvsry of rudt arrlgnmant, conflrmrtoq,or
rrrtgnmnt or othcr urltbn lnrtrumrntr 6lha thprrfitcnt mey nqqrt. TtF
Ocpertncnt CrCl hnut lha rlght lo oblffn rnd hoH ln llr ntma rll copdghl
ndlrtrdonr rnd ottrcr cyldrncr of rlglrh thrt may ba erellrbh forWoft Rodud
unthrtrlr Agnrmnt. Gmntcc frctaby rvalvoe rll rlghb rulrflng to ldcntfrcrflon of
lrllrontrlp rurfiann or Hmlhdon on urc or rubmquent modifrcetlon dthr Worf.

Grsnttt, lb tmplolgl rnd ell Gmnbr'l conffidoil, eubconintion rnd rub-
ndptini hcr.tif .i* to *rlgn to tha thprrtnrnt rll lrnnnUmr, togcfter uililt
thr'rigtrl to tcci pifoaAon ry 6mhfrg prirnt rlghb thartftrtr rnd to chlm ell
dghior prlority-thcruundcr-snd thc-irme rlirll brcomo rnd cmrln thr
Oiprrtmcdtt pmpany ragnrdlcm of urlnilrsr lrdr pmt6gton lr mught. Tha
Grinbo, ttr nnittryinc 

-enO Gnnbr'r confrdor, lfrcontr$r sfil lor
ruUrapnrC rhrll'prumpty mrka n comdeb r*rittrn dlrclorura t0lht lhFsrhlrnt
d crclr'lnruntlon rid ottrairylra cherly dirclorad h fia tlrpe@rnt ln tlr pdnant
Wotfi Ptudud, rptcmc*ry nctlng tLatum gp concepli thst iltc Gmnba, ltr
tmfloynr mdr6 Cmftrt 6ntr56tor, wbaonfrdor rnd/or rubruclplcnt
bcHcwr to bs new or dlffrrunt,

Upon comFhtlon cf rtl *r;lr undcr tlrlr Agruuncnt. all lntdltctml proPorty rlghtl,
oirnanfilp rnd tith to all rupo'rb, doctrmrltb, pl6tu, lPtclfrc1donr rnd cdmrlu'
prorlucarl' nr Ff,il af trlr Agncmcnt #ll antomiilcrtly ba vudrd ln Dcpefincnt rnl
nofuitheregrsansnt $[ E€ necetgery to hanrtrr o*ruruhlp to t]epiltTtaft

$urclrl Gondttonr

TtF Sttr ruEaflEr tha right to dd any epcciel condltlonr tro thlr Agrucmrnt it dtail naffit3ry
to esnrm th$ $c poltct end goalr cf hc Prcgnm grt achlarud.

3)

4)

r3.

Phnnlng Grlntr Fmgnm (PGP)
HOFADTb: tlsrdt 28,2010
Approrltr Dete: Qchht 17,Ifi18
Prup. Ihb: ItmrnErr 0, 2010



Attachment Il: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or
employees.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND TIMIT OF INSURANCE
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL
on an "eccurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage,
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate,

Additional Insured Status. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CCL policy with respect to liability arising out of
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, parts, or
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Consultant's insurance [at least as broad
as ISO Form CG 20 L0 1L 85 or both CG 20 I0, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG ?0 38; and CG ZA37
forms if later revisions usedJ,

Automohile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 [any
auto), or if Consultant has no owned autos, Code 8 [hiredJ and 9 (non-ownedJ, with limit no
Iess than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

Workefs' Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and
Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease, May be waived with signed letter on contractor's letterhead certifying that
contractor has no employees.

Professional tiahility [Errors and OmissionsJ: appropriate to the Consu]tant's profession,
with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

PrimaryCoverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Consultant's insurance coverage shalt be primary
insuranceprimarycoverage atleastas broad as ISO CG 20 01 0413 as respects Inyo County,its
officers, officials, ernployees, and vo]unteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant's
insurance and shallnot contribute with it,

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to Inyo County,

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1

Professional Services
page



Attachment - Insurance Provisions

Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Seruices

Waiver of $ubrogation
Consultant hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer
of said Consultant may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss under
such insurance, Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer,

Self-Insured Retentions
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. lnyo County may
require the Consultant to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide,
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named
insured or lnyo County.

Acceptability of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurels authorized to conduct business in the state with a

current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.

Claims Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basisr
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the

beginning of contract work.
2, Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five

[5J years after completion of the contract of work.
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another clairns-made policy

form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Consultant must
purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a rninirnum of five (5J years after completion of
contract work.

Verifipation of Coverage
Consultant shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all
required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable policy language effecting
coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the
CGL policy listing allpolicy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Consultant's
obligation to provide them, lnyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at
any time,

Subcontractor$
Consultant shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional
insured on insurance required from subcontractors,

Special Risks or Circumstances

County of lnyo lnsurance Sundards- No.1
Professional Services

Page



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirernents, including limits, based on the

nature of the risk, prior experlence, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

-end-

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1

Professional Services
page



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $

DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRO-
POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

7/19/2021

(858) 888-7819 (858) 888-7820

10851

Helix Environmental Planning, Inc.
7578 El Cajon Blvd., Suite 200
La Mesa, CA 91942

16044
12177

A 1,000,000

X X EF4ML06406-211 4/1/2021 4/1/2022 50,000
Contractor Pollution 10,000
Deductible $5,000 1,000,000

2,000,000
2,000,000

1,000,000B
EF4CA00376-211 4/1/2021 4/1/2022

Comp $100 Coll $1,000

9,000,000B
EF4CU01451-211 4/1/2021 4/1/2022 9,000,000

0
C

WCV5504168 4/1/2021 4/1/2022 1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

A Professional Liab EF4ML06406-211 4/1/2021 Any One Wrongful Act 1,000,000
A Ded: $10k Per Claim EF4ML06406-211 4/1/2021 4/1/2022 Aggregate: 2,000,000

Excess Liability policy follows the General Liability, Contractors Pollution Liability, Professional Liability, Auto Liability & Employers Liability.
30 Days Notice of Cancellation with 10 Days Notice for Non-Payment of Premium in accordance with the policy provisions.

Professional Liability Retroactive Date 10/01/1991

Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are named Additional Insured's with respects to General Liability per attached. Coverage is
Primary and Non-Contributory. General Liability Waiver of Subrogation applies.
SEE ATTACHED ACORD 101

County of Inyo
Planning Department
PO Drawer L
Independence, CA 93526

HELIENV-01 CERT2

Assured Partners of CA Insurance Services, LLC dba: Wateridge Insurance 
Services
10717 Sorrento Valley Road
San Diego, CA 92121

Stephanie Zuniga

szuniga@wateridge.com

Everest Indemnity Insurance Co
Everest Denali Ins. Co.
CompWest Insurance Company

X

4/1/2022

X
X

X
X

X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X



FORM NUMBER:

EFFECTIVE DATE:

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE

FORM TITLE:

Page           of

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

ACORD 101 (2008/01)

AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:
LOC #:

AGENCY NAMED INSURED

POLICY NUMBER

CARRIER NAIC CODE

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

Assured Partners of CA Insurance Services, LLC dba: Wateridge Insurance Services

HELIENV-01

SEE PAGE 1

1

SEE PAGE 1

ACORD 25 Certificate of Liability Insurance

1

SEE P 1

Helix Environmental Planning, Inc.
7578 El Cajon Blvd., Suite 200
La Mesa, CA 91942

SEE PAGE 1

CERT2

1

Description of Operations/Locations/Vehicles:
RE: Insured's operations performed under written contract.



POLICY NUMBER: EVEREST CONTRACTORS ENVIRONMENTAL PLUS 
ECG 24 669 08 18 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ECG 24 669 08 18 Copyright, Everest Reinsurance Company, 2018 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 

used with its permission. 

Page 1 of 1 

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY 
AGAINST OTHERS TO US 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

EVEREST CONTRACTORS ENVIRONMENTAL PLUS COVERAGE PART 

SCHEDULE 

Name of Person or Organization: 

Any person or organization that is: 

1. An owner of real or personal property on which you are performing operations; or

2. A contractor on whose behalf you are performing operations.

 (If no entry appears above, information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the Declarations 
as applicable to this endorsement.) 

Paragraph 19. Subrogation of Section IV – Conditions is amended by the addition of the following: 

We waive any right of recovery we may have against the person or organization shown in the Schedule above 
because of payments we make for injury or damage arising out of your ongoing operations or "your work" done 
under a contract with that person or organization and included in the "products-completed operations hazard". 
This waiver applies only to the person or organization shown in the Schedule above.  

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged. 

EF4ML06406-211



WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY WC 99 03 13 C

(Ed. 7-09)

WAIVER OF OUR RIGHT TO RECOVER FROM OTHERS ENDORSEMENT – CALIFORNIA

Schedule

Person or Organization Job Description

WC 99 03 13 C
(Ed. 7-09) 

This endorsement changes the policy to which it is attached and is effective on the date issued unless otherwise stated.

(The information below is required only when this endorsement is issued subsequent to preparation of the policy.)

Endorsement Effective Policy No. Endorsement No.

Insured

Insurance Company Countersigned by

We have the right to recover our payments from anyone liable for an injury covered by this policy. We will 
not enforce our right against the person or organization named in the Schedule. (This agreement applies 
only to the extent that you perform work under a written contract that requires you to obtain this 
agreement from us.)

You must maintain payroll records accurately segregating the remuneration of your employees while 
engaged in the work described in the Schedule.

The additional premium for this endorsement shall be $ 

Any person or organization that you perform work for that is liable for an injury, covered by this policy, that 

prior to the injury has written contract requiring a waiver of our right to recover from them.

       500

04/01/2021

HELIX ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING,

COMPWEST INSURANCE COMPANY

WCV 5504168 000

Any person or organization for which the insured has

agreed by written contract.

All CA Operations 



POLICY NUMBER: EVEREST CONTRACTORS ENVIRONMENTAL PLUS
ECG 20 640 02 19

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ECG 20 640 02 19 Copyright, Everest Reinsurance Company 2019
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc.,

used with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

ADDITIONAL INSURED  DESIGNATED PERSON OR 
ORGANIZATION  ONGOING OPERATIONS 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

EVEREST CONTRACTORS ENVIRONMENTAL PLUS COVERAGE PART 

SCHEDULE 

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or Organization(s):

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Solely with respect to coverage provided under Coverages A, B, and C, Section II  Who Is An Insured is
amended to include as an additional insured the person(s) or organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only
with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in
whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf:
1. In the performance of your ongoing operations; or
2. In connection with your premises owned by or rented to you.
However:
1. The insurance afforded to such additional insured only applies to the extent permitted by law; and
2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is required by a contract or agreement, the insurance

afforded to such additional insured will not be broader than that which you are required by the contract or
agreement to provide for such additional insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following is added to Section III
Limits Of Insurance And Deductible:
If coverage provided to the additional insured is required by a contract or agreement, the most we will pay on
behalf of the additional insured is the amount of insurance:
1. Required by the contract or agreement; or
2. Available under the applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations;
whichever is less.
This endorsement shall not increase the applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged. 



POLICY NUMBER: EVEREST CONTRACTORS ENVIRONMENTAL PLUS 
ECG 24 743 05 19 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ECG 24 743 05 19 Copyright, Everest Reinsurance Company 2019 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., 

 used with its permission. 

Page 1 of 1 

ADDITIONAL INSURED – OWNERS, LESSEES OR 
CONTRACTORS – COMPLETED OPERATIONS 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

EVEREST CONTRACTORS ENVIRONMENTAL PLUS COVERAGE PART 

SCHEDULE 

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or 
Organization(s): 

Location And Description Of Completed 
Operations 

Any owner, lessee or contractor whom you have 
agreed to include as an additional insured under a 
written contract, provided such contract was executed 
prior to the date of the loss.  

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

A. Section II – Who Is An Insured is amended to include as an additional insured the person(s) or
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage"
or a “pollution incident” caused, in whole or in part, by "your work" at the location designated and described in
the Schedule of this endorsement performed for that additional insured and included in the "products-
completed operations hazard".
However:
1. The insurance afforded to such additional insured only applies to the extent permitted by law; and
2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is required by a contract or agreement, the insurance

afforded to such additional insured will not be broader than that which you are required by the contract or
agreement to provide for such additional insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following is added to
Section III – Limits Of Liability and Deductible:
If coverage provided to the additional insured is required by a contract or agreement, the most we will pay on
behalf of the additional insured is the amount of insurance:
1  Required by the contract or agreement; or
2. Available under the applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations;
whichever is less.
This endorsement shall not increase the applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged. 

EF4ML06406-211



POLICY NUMBER: EVEREST CONTRACTORS ENVIRONMENTAL PLUS 
ECG 24 698 09 18 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ECG 24 698 09 18 Copyright, Everest Reinsurance Company, 2018 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., 

used with its permission. 

Page 1 of 1 

PRIMARY AND NONCONTRIBUTORY –  
DESIGNATED PERSON OR ORGANIZATION 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

EVEREST CONTRACTORS ENVIRONMENTAL PLUS COVERAGE FORM 

SCHEDULE 

Designated Person or Organization: 

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

The following is added to the Other Insurance Condition and supersedes any provision to the contrary: 

Primary And Noncontributory Insurance 

This insurance is primary to and we will not seek contribution from any other insurance available to the person 
or organization designated in the Schedule above which you have agreed to insure under this Policy provided 
that: 

(1) Such person or organization is an insured under this Policy; and

(2) An “insured contract” requires this insurance to be primary.

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged. 

EF4ML06406-211



County of Inyo

Planning Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 10, 2021
 
FROM:  Cathreen Richards
 
SUBJECT:  Joint Funding Agreement with USGS
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Planning Department - Request Board approve the Joint Funding Agreement with the U.S. Geological Survey 
for Wells and Springs Monitored in the Amargosa Desert in the amount of $8,000 for the period of October 1, 
2021 through September 30, 2022, and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The County has been participating in licensing activities being conducted by U.S. Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission (NRC) concerning the proposed Repository for High Level Nuclear Waste at Yucca Mountain for 
many years. Numerous agencies have groundwater monitoring wells in the Amargosa desert, including the U.S. 
Geological Survey (USGS), National Park Service (NPS), U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFS), Bureau of Land 
Management (BLM), and Nye County. Many of these wells were developed in relation to the Yucca Mountain 
program, including several wells developed by lnyo County. USGS monitors wells in the network and archives 
the data. This information is valuable to the County's Yucca Mountain program because if licensing proceedings 
re-initiate in the future, the data will provide greater clarity about the groundwater link between the Repository site 
and lnyo County.

The County has been participating in the monitoring of the Amargosa Well network, and the Joint Funding 
Agreement (JFA) between the County and USGS will expire September 30, 2021. County staff has coordinated 
with USGS to prepare the attached new JFA for the network to continue the County's participation in the 
program. As discussed above, the network provides valuable data for the County's Yucca Mountain program, and 
staff recommends that the County continue to participate in the program by providing funding to the USGS for its 
monitoring activities.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could not approve the JFA. This is not recommended because the Amargosa well network provides
valuable information relevant to the County's Yucca Mountain program. The Board could also direct staff to
collect additional information and return for reconsideration at a future date.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
USGS, NPS, FWS, BLM, and Nye County, NV
 
FINANCING:
Resources for the JFA are budgeted within Yucca Mountain Oversight Budget #620605, Professional Services
Object Code #5265. Fund balance is available to finance this work.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. USGS Payment Agreement
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 8/3/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 8/3/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/3/2021
Cathreen Richards Final Approval - 8/3/2021











County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 10, 2021
 
FROM:  Travis Dean
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution and Notice of Completion for the Progress House Generator Project
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Resolution No. 2021-42, titled, “A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County 
of Inyo, State of California Authorizing the Recording of a Notice of Completion for the Progress House 
Generator Project," and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
At the March 16, 2021 meeting of the Board of Supervisors, your Board awarded the construction contract for the 
Progress House Generator Project to Eldridge Electric & Son, Inc. of Bishop, California in the amount of 
$31,439.89.

Eldridge Electric & Son, Inc. recently completed work on the Progress House Generator Project. On July 9, 2021, 
the final inspection was performed and the work was determined to be complete to the satisfaction of the Public 
Works Director.  

Accordingly, the Director is requesting that the Board adopt the attached Resolution, which accepts the 
completed work and authorizes the Public Works Director to record a Notice of Completion for the project.

In addition to formally accepting the work, the Notice of Completion begins the period during which stop notices 
may be placed against the work. In the event that no stop notices are filed, the retention must be returned to the 
Contractor.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the Resolution.  Consequently, the project would not be formally 
accepted and the Notice of Completion could not be filed.  Choosing not to approve the Resolution is not 
recommended as it will extend the period during which stop notices can be filed and will delay return of retention 
monies to the Contractor.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

County Counsel
Auditor
 
FINANCING:
This project is funded by the Deferred Maintenance Budget 011501, Object Code 5650 Equipment
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Notice of Completion and Resolution
 
APPROVALS:
Travis Dean Created/Initiated - 7/21/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 7/21/2021
Travis Dean Approved - 7/22/2021
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 7/22/2021
Breanne Nelums Approved - 7/22/2021
Denelle Carrington Approved - 7/27/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 7/27/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 7/27/2021
Michael Errante Final Approval - 7/27/2021



RESOLUTION #2021 -

“A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
OF THE

COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA
AUTHORIZING THE RECORDING OF A NOTICE OF COMPLETION

FOR THE
PROGRESS HOUSE GENERATOR PROJECT”

WHEREAS, Michael Errante, Director of the Public Works Department of the County of Inyo, has 
determined that the Progress House Generator Project has been completed by Eldridge Electric & Son Inc. in 
accordance with the Project Plans and Specifications.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Director of Public Works is hereby authorized 
and directed to sign and file with the County Recorder a separate Notice of Completion pertaining to the 
Progress House Generator Project.

Passed, approved and adopted this             day of                          , 2021 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Matt Kingsley, Chairperson, Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

by 
Clerk 



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:

Inyo County Public Works Department
P. O. Drawer Q
Independence, CA 93515

                                                                                               The area above this line is for Recorder’s Use

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT:

1. A work of improvement known as the  Progress House Generator Project  on the property hereinafter 
described was completed on      July 9, 2021       and was accepted by the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo 
on March 10, 2020.

2. The property on which the  Progress House Generator Project  has been completed and is located on is at 
536 North 2nd Street, Bishop CA 93514.

3. The County of Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, the address of which is 224 North 
Edwards Street, P.O. Drawer N, Independence, CA 93526, owns and maintains the property located at 536 
North 2nd Street, Bishop, CA 93514.

4. The undersigned, Michael Errante, is the Director of Public Works of the County of Inyo and has been duly 
authorized pursuant to Resolution adopted March 10, 2020, by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo 
to execute and file this Notice of Completion.

5. The name of the original contractor that constructed the Progress House Generator Project, pursuant to 
contract with the County, is Eldridge Electric & Son, Inc.

Pursuant to the contract, the contractor was required to furnish all labor, materials, methods or processes, 
implements, tools, machinery, equipment, transportation services, and all other items and related functions 
which are necessary or appurtenant to construct the project designated in the contract.

COUNTY OF INYO

Dated: By: 
Michael Errante, Director of Public Works



VERIFICATION

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
)  SS.

COUNTY OF INYO )

I, Michael Errante, hereby declare: That I am the Director of Public Works for the County of 
Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, the public entity on behalf of which I 
executed the foregoing NOTICE OF COMPLETION for the  Progress House Generator Project, 
and which entity is the owner of the aforesaid interest or estate in the property therein 
described; that I am authorized by the public entity to execute this NOTICE on the entity’s 
behalf; that I am authorized to and hereby make this verification on behalf of the public entity; 
and that I have read said NOTICE and know the contents thereof.  I declare under penalty of 
perjury under the laws of the State of California that the NOTICE and the information set forth 
therein are true and correct.

Dated: ____________________________________
Michael Errante



County of Inyo

Agricultural Commissioner
 

DEPARTMENTAL - NO ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 10, 2021
 
FROM:  Nathan Reade
 
SUBJECT:  Crop and Livestock Report for 2020
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board receive a presentation on the 2020 Annual Crop and Livestock Report.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This will be a general review of the 2020 annual crop and livestock report, which is submitted in accordance with 
Section 2279 of the California Food and Agriculture Code. Agriculture continues to be a solid industry that is an 
integral part of Inyo and Mono counties' economy.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
 
ATTACHMENTS:
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 8/2/2021
Janice Jackson Approved - 8/2/2021
Nathan Reade Final Approval - 8/2/2021



County of Inyo

Water Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - NO ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 10, 2021
 
FROM:  Aaron Steinwand
 
SUBJECT:  Workshop – Status and summary of the administrative draft of the OVGA Groundwater Sustainability 
Plan.
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Water Department - Request Board hear an informational workshop regarding the status and summary of the 
administrative draft of the OVGA Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Following the designation of the Owens Valley Groundwater Basin as low priority in 2019, the OVGA decided to 
continue and prepare a GSP voluntarily to manage groundwater resources and provide an important public 
service for residents of the Basin.  During 2020 and 2021, staff and consultants have proceeded to prepare the 
GSP and present draft components of the plan to the OVGA Board for discussion and public comment as they 
were developed.  Work on the plan has relied largely on funds provided by a Department of Water Resources 
grant.  Under the terms of the grant agreement and also to comply with SGMA, the OVGA is required to prepare 
and submit a GSP for the entire basin by January 2022.  The GSP does not apply to pumping on lands owned by 
the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power or de minimis domestic wells.

The administrative draft for internal review by the OVGA Directors is nearly complete, and this workshop will 
briefly review the process to develop the GSP and will summarize the components of the GSP that are pertinent 
to portions of the Basin in Inyo County.

The OVGA sustainability goal included in the GSP is to monitor and manage the Basin by implementing a 
groundwater monitoring network and database and by adopting management actions that fairly consider the 
needs of and protect the groundwater resources for all beneficial users in the Basin.  Based on the low priority 
status, conditions in the Basin overall are currently deemed sustainable, and the OVGA is committed to 
preventing undesirable results and to ensuring the sustainability of the Basin is maintained.  The plan includes 
sustainability criteria to maintain groundwater levels and applicable water quality standards and to prevent 
subsidence. Procedures to continue or expand monitoring, maintain groundwater information in a publically 
accessible database. and adopt regulations as necessary are also described.  

The GSP is organized into five main sections with most of the technical evaluations and backup documentation 
included as appendices.  The five sections describe the purpose and goals for the plan, OVGA agency 
information, Basin setting (descriptions of the geology, hydrology, groundwater conditions, etc), sustainability 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

criteria (SMC) and future management actions and projects. Staff and consultants have proposed dividing the 
Owens Valley Groundwater Basin into three management areas based on the varying hydrogeologic conditions: 
Fish Slough and Tri-Valley, Owens Valley, and Owens Lake. Dividing the Basin into separate management areas 
allows for development of unique SMC and potential management actions that take into account the 
hydrogeologic conditions present in each area. The SMC consist of a description of what constitutes undesirable 
results (e.g. drying of a domestic well), minimum thresholds which are a quantitative value that defines 
undesirable results and management objectives that are quantifiable goals for the maintenance or improvement 
of groundwater conditions.  The management objectives are included in the GSP to document if the basin is 
sustainable based on comparisons with data acquired by the monitoring network and data collected at 
representative locations as the plan is implemented.  Finally, the plan includes a description of the projects and 
management actions the OVGA has determined will maintain conditions and achieve the sustainability goal for 
the basin.  SGMA requires the GSP include an estimate of the costs to implement the plan, but the GSP 
recognizes that the basin is low priority and that implementation of any of the actions by the OVGA is 
discretionary.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Board of Supervisors OVGA GSP Workshop
 
APPROVALS:
Aaron Steinwand Created/Initiated - 7/29/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 7/29/2021
Aaron Steinwand Approved - 8/4/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 8/4/2021
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 8/4/2021



Owens Valley Groundwater Authority 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan Update

Inyo Board of Supervisors  Inyo Board of Supervisors  
WorkshopWorkshop

August 10, 2021August 10, 2021

Aaron SteinwandAaron Steinwand
Inyo County Water DirectorInyo County Water Director

Photo Credit: M. Jabis



Slide TitleGSP Development Steps

Data Compilation & Data Management SystemInstitutional Setting: Plan Area, Water Supply 

Hydrogeologic Conceptual Model Water Budget (Historical, Current, and Projected)

Science: Describe the Basin 

Define Undesirable Results for this Basin Develop Monitoring Plan

Policy: Set Groundwater Monitoring and Goals for the Basin

Set Sustainability Criteria (SMC)

Projects and Management actions to Achieve 
Sustainability (Regulations)?

Implementation Components: Steps the OVGA can undertake to manage the Basin
Future Budget and Financing (Fees, Member 
Contributions?)



SGMA Sustainability Indicators

Sustainability Indicator  Needed for Owens Valley Basin?

Consistent Lowering of Groundwater Levels  Yes

Reduction of Groundwater Storage  Yes

Depletion of Connected Surface Water  Yes

Seawater Intrusion  No

Degraded Water Quality  Yes

Land Subsidence  Yes

No new standards



Slide TitleEstablishing Sustainability Management Criteria 

Three Main Parts of SMC

Undesirable results – significant and unreasonable effects for any sustainability 
indicators.

Minimum Threshold – a quantitative value that defines undesirable results.  

Measurable Objective – specified quantifiable goals for the maintenance or 
improvement of groundwater conditions.  Documents if the basin is sustainable.  



Proposed Management Areas for the 
Owens Valley Groundwater Basin



Slide TitleProposed SMC, Owens Valley Management Area

Indicator Undesirable Results Metric Minimum Threshold Measureable Objective

GW elevation
    Increased pumping costs
    Drying out shallow domestic wells
    Loss of existing monitoring wells 

GW elevation

Lowest GW elevation during 2012-2016 
drought
 -OR -                                                                                          

lowest GW elevation available since 2000

Average GW elevation from WY 
2001-2010

-OR-                                                                                              
Average GW elevation for most 

recent 10 years 

GW Storage 
Reduction

Decreased ability to maintain status 
quo pumping during extended 

drought periods
GW elevation Same Same

SW Depletion
Reduction of groundwater discharged 
to the surface resulting in impairment 

of GDEs
GW elevation Same Same

Land Subsidence General infrastructure damage InSAR                                     
GW elevation

Groundwater elevation change and 
Measurement of 0.3 ft of subsidence within 

a 5 year period

Average GW elevation from WY 
2001-2010  

-OR-                                                                                               
Average GW elevation for most 

recent 10 years                        
AND                                                                                                       

0 ft of subsidence



SMCs

          Measureable  
Objective

Minimum  
Threshhold

Water Level  
Observation

Trusted

PRELIMINARY DRAFT  
SUBJECT TO REVISION

Dry Wet Dry Wet Dry Wet Dry Wet Dry Dry Wet Dry Wet Dry Wet Wet4065

4070

4075

4080

5

20

Ja
n−

19
80

Ja
n−

19
85

Ja
n−

19
90

Ja
n−

19
95

Ja
n−

20
00

Ja
n−

20
05

Ja
n−

20
10

Ja
n−

20
15

Ja
n−

20
20

Ja
n−

20
25

W
at

er
 L

ev
el

 
El

ev
at

io
n 

(ft
 a

m
sl

)

SMCs

          Measureable  
Objective

          Minimum
Threshhold

10 Water Level  
Observation

15
Trusted

Dry

T574
4085 D

epth to G
roundw

ater (ft bgs)

Dry Wet Dry Wet Dry Wet Dry Wet Dry Dry Wet Dry Wet Dry Wet Wet3980

3982

3984

3986

3988
280

282

284

286

288

W
at

er
 L

ev
el

 
El

ev
at

io
n 

(ft
 a

m
sl

) SMCs

          Measureable  
Objective

          Minimum
Threshhold

Water Level  
Observation
         Trusted

T869
3990

D
epth to G

roundw
ater (ft bgs)

Ja
n−

19
80

Ja
n−

19
85

Ja
n−

19
90

Ja
n−

19
95

Ja
n−

20
00

Ja
n−

20
05

Ja
n−

20
10

Ja
n−

20
15

Ja
n−

20
20

Ja
n−

20
25

Dry Wet Dry Wet Dry Wet Dry Wet Dry Dry Wet Dry Wet Dry Wet Wet4040

4050

4060

4070

4080

10

20

30

40

50

Ja
n−

19
80

Ja
n−

19
85

Ja
n−

19
90

Ja
n−

19
95

Ja
n−

20
00

Ja
n−

20
05

Ja
n−

20
10

Ja
n−

20
15

Ja
n−

20
20

Ja
n−

20
25

W
at

er
 L

ev
el

 
El

ev
at

io
n 

(ft
 a

m
sl

) SMCs
         Measureable  

Objective

          Minimum
Threshhold

Water Level  
Observation

Trusted

T362
4090

D
epth to G

roundw
ater (ft bgs)



Slide TitleProposed SMC, Owens Lake Management Area

Indicator Undesirable Results Metric Minimum Threshold Measureable Objective

GW 
elevation

Increased pumping costs, 

drying out of shallow domestic 
wells, 

loss of existing monitoring wells

GW elevation Lowest GW elevation during  
period of record (usually 2012-

2016 drought)

-OR-

Lowest GW elevation  
available since 2000

Average GW elevation from 
WY 2001-2010  

  -OR-                                                                                             

Average GW elevation for 
most recent 10 years 

GW Storage 
Reduction

Decreased ability to maintain 
status quo pumping during 
extended drought periods

GW elevation Same Same



Owens Lake 
Management Area

Preliminary Draft
Subject to Revision

3685.88 ft

3693.33 ft

3607.19 ft

3608.81 ft

T910

MT

M0



H3MP  = Hydrologic Monitoring, Management, and Mitigation Plan for The Owens Lake Groundwater Development Program (A 
component of Owens Lake Master Project)

Indicator Undesirable Results Metric Minimum Threshold Measureable Objective

SW 
Depletion

Reduction of groundwater 
discharged to the surface 

resulting in impacts to GDEs
GW elevation

Reduction of groundwater flow 
gradient toward springs below a 

percentage of the baseline 
gradient

Baseline period 
groundwater flow gradient 

towards springs

Land 
Subsidence

Damage to conveyance 
infrastructure 

General infrastructure damage

InSar
Measurement of 0.3 ft of 
subsidence within a 5 year 

period

Average GW elevation from 
WY 2001-2010                              

-OR-                                                                                                  
Average GW elevation for 

most recent 10 years                                 
AND                                                                                                   

0 ft of subsidence

Proposed SMC, Owens Lake Management Area



Slide Title

de minimis -  domestic use, <2ac-ft/yrSGMA does not apply to de minimis pumpers
but they can be protected in the GSP

Authority Granted to OVGA Under SGMA

• Provide technical assistance to groundwater pumpers

• Adopt regulations, ordinances, and resolutions

• Register pumping wells

• Regulate groundwater pumping; amounts or allocations, 
well-spacing, new or reactivation of wells, 

• Measure and report on groundwater conditions

• Enforce compliance with a GSP

• Assess pumping or property-related fees

The OVGA can:



Meeting ObjectivesGSP Proposed Management Actions and Projects

1. Well Registration and Reporting Ordinance

2. Well Permit Review Ordinance

3. Increase groundwater level monitoring network

4. Tri-Valley groundwater model development 

5. Additional Activities:
Provide assistance acquiring state or federal funding
Develop pumping program to stabilize water levels in Tri-Valley Groundwater Management Area
Owens Lake Groundwater Development Project
 
 



Meeting ObjectivesGSP Management Actions and Projects

Table Explanation

Grouped by Management Area: Some actions apply Basin wide; All jurisdictional issues set aside for now.

Management actions are linked to Sustainability Indicators

Goal: Rationale behind the sustainable management criteria (SMC).  “Goal” is shorthand for these tables. 

Required Action: What the Board will need to do to

Timeline: Short = 1-2 years
Medium = 3-4 years
Long  > 5 years

Trigger: Event that starts implementation 

Tri-Valley Management Area
Sustainability 
Indicator

Goal Management Action or Project  Required Action Timeline Triggers Notes



Owens Valley Management Area
Sustainability 
Indicator

Goal Management Action or Project Required Action Timeline Triggers Notes

Lowering of 
Water Levels, 

Reduction in 
Storage,

Surface Water 
Depletion 

Maintain 
Water Levels

Set SMC minimum threshold in the 
GSP at lowest GW elevation during 
2012-2016 drought and 
management objective at the 
average elevation from 2001-2010

Include in approved GSP Short N/A  

Establish supply well registration 
and reporting

Well Registration and 
Reporting Ordinance

Short GSP adoption Information is necessary to fill 
data gap and to maintain 
database 

Review new permits for water 
supply wells  Regulate production if 
necessary to ensure water levels 
remain within SMC 

Well Permit Review 
Ordinance (de minimis 
excluded).

Short GSP adoption Information necessary to 
maintain database.  Hydrology 
staff or contractor required. 

Acquire or develop groundwater 
model for the Owens Valley 
management area 

TBD Medium Board Direction
Grant Funding 
Awarded

 

Provide assistance acquiring  state or 
federal funding for projects to 
improve groundwater use efficiency 
or conservation 

Resolution Medium  Grant Funding 
Opportunity

Conducted in cooperation with 
Inyo-Mono IRWMP



Owens Valley Management Area
Sustainability 
Indicator

Goal Management Action or Project Required Action Timeline Triggers Notes

Subsidence
 

Prevent 
subsidence
 

Set SMC minimum threshold of 
0.3 ft and measureable objective 
based on average water level and 
0 ft of subsidence

Include in approved 
GSP

Short N/A  

Monitor water levels and for 
changes in ground elevation 
utilizing publically available 
remote sensing methods

None Short Board 
Direction

Hydrology staff or 
contractor required to 
analyze data and report 
findings

Water Quality Track Water 
Quality 

Continue data acquisition from 
ongoing monitoring programs or 
studies 

None Short GSP adoption Staff time to maintain 
database



Owens Lake Management Area
Sustainability 
Indicator

Goal Management Action Possible Board Action Timeline Triggers Notes

Lowering Water 
Levels, 

Surface Water 
Depletion

Maintain 
Water Levels

Set SMC minimum threshold in the 
GSP at lowest GW elevation during 
2012-2016 drought and 
management objective at the 
average elevation from 2001-2010.

Include in approved GSP Short N/A  

Establish supply well registration 
and reporting

Well Registration and 
Reporting Ordinance

Short GSP adoption Information is necessary to fill 
data gap and to maintain the 
OVGA database 

Review new permits for water 
supply wells.  Regulate production if 
necessary to ensure water levels 
remain within SMC 

Well Permit Review 
Ordinance (de minimis 
excluded).

Short GSP adoption Information needed to 
maintain OVGA database.  
Hydrology staff or contractor 
required. 

Acquire or develop groundwater 
model for the Owens Lake 
management area 

  Medium Board Direction
 

 

Participate in the Owens Lake 
Groundwater Working Group and 
the proposed regulatory entity to 
oversee the Master Project  EIR and 
HMMMP provisions

MOU, GSP Amendment  
to include SMC for 
GDE/springs for the 
Master Project

Short and 
Long

Ongoing
Master Project 
implemented

Hydrology staff or contractor 
required.  Costs or fees 
associated with oversight could 
be negotiated with project 
proponent



Owens Lake Management Area
Sustainability 
Indicator

Goal Management Action Possible Board Action Timeline Triggers Notes

Subsidence Prevent 
subsidence

Monitor water levels and changes in 
ground elevation utilizing publically 
available remote sensing methods

  Short GSP adoption For portion of management 
area outside the lakebed

Participate in the proposed 
regulatory entity to oversee the 
LADWP Master Project  EIR and 
HMMMP provisions

MOU, GSP Amendment  
to include SMC for 
subsidence for the 
Master Project

Long Master Project 
implemented

Hydrology staff or contractor 
required.  

Water Quality
 

Track Water 
Quality 
 

Continue data acquisition from 
ongoing monitoring programs or 
studies 

None  Short GSP adoption Staff time to maintain database

Participate in the Owens Lake 
Groundwater Working Group and 
the proposed regulatory entity to 
oversee the Master Project  EIR and 
HMMMP provisions

MOU, GSP Amendment  
to include SMC for water 
quality for the Master 
Project

Short and 
Long

Ongoing
Master Project 
implemented

Hydrology staff or contractor 
required.  Costs or fees 
associated with oversight could 
be negotiated with project 
proponent



Slide Title

• Questions?:

• Website: OVGA.us, inyowater.org.

• Contacts:  
Aaron Steinwand 
Inyo County Water Director
asteinwand@inyocounty.us

Funding for this project has been provided in part from the Water Quality, Supply, and 
Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014 and through an agreement with the State 
Department of Water Resources

mailto:asteinwand@inyocounty.us


County of Inyo

Water Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - NO ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 10, 2021
 
FROM:  Aaron Steinwand
 
SUBJECT:  Owens Valley Groundwater Authority Meeting – August 12, 2021
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board provide direction to the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority representatives in advance of the 
OVGA regular meeting scheduled for August 12, 2021.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
At the next OVGA meeting, staff will provide updates on the status of the GSP administrative draft, Indian Wells 
Valley Groundwater Authority activities, the Tri-Valley survey, and OVGA current finances.

The agenda contains one Action Item to formally create three management areas in the Basin. Staff and 
consultants have proposed dividing the Owens Valley Groundwater Basin into three management areas based 
on the varying hydrogeologic conditions arising from the differences in topography, geology, and climate over the 
large area of the Basin.  The management areas are: Fish Slough and Tri-Valley, Owens Valley, and Owens 
Lake.  Dividing the Basin into separate management areas allows for the development of unique sustainable 
management criteria and potential management actions that take into account the hydrogeologic conditions 
present in each area. The Joint Powers Agreement establishing the OVGA requires a majority vote of the 
Directors appointed by members to create management areas.  In March 2021, the OVGA directed staff and 
consultants to organize the GSP according to the proposed management areas, but the areas have not been 
created by a formal vote.  

The JPA provides that additional costs above typical expenses to administer the GSP within a management area 
shall be borne by one or more members that are designated to implement the plan in the area unless otherwise 
agreed to by the OVGA that costs will be shared. Designating the members responsible for the management 
areas need not be decided at this meeting.

In July, the OVGA discussed proposed management actions developed by staff and tailored for each 
management area that could be included in the GSP.  At the August 12 meeting, staff will present estimated 
costs for implementing the management actions for OVGA discussion and possible direction.  SGMA requires the 
GSP include an estimate of the costs to implement the plan. The GSP recognizes that the basin is low priority, 
and that implementation of any activities by the OVGA is discretionary.  Decisions whether to implement all or 
parts of the GSP, designate members responsible for management areas, and how to fund the management 
actions or projects will be necessary after the GSP is submitted in January 2022.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
City of Bishop, Mono County, Indian Creek-Westridge CSD, Big Pine CSD; Lone Pine Paiute-Shoshone Tribe
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. OVGA Agenda Draft 08.12.21 Agenda
 
APPROVALS:
Aaron Steinwand Created/Initiated - 7/29/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 7/29/2021
Aaron Steinwand Approved - 8/2/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 8/2/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/4/2021
Aaron Steinwand Final Approval - 8/4/2021



Members: Big Pine CSD - City of Bishop - County of Inyo - County of Mono - Indian Creek Westridge CSD 
Interested Parties:: Lone Pine Paiute Shoshone Tribe - Owens Valley Committee

1

Owens Valley Groundwater Authority 

August 12, 2021  2:00 PM

Board of Directors Meeting Agenda

All members of the public are encouraged to participate in the discussion of any items on the Agenda. Members of the public will be allowed to 
speak about each agenda item before the Board of Directors takes action on it. Any member of the public may also make comments during the 
scheduled “Public Comment” period on this agenda concerning any subject related to the Board of Directors or the Owens Valley 
Groundwater Authority.

Public Notice: In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please 
contact Laura Piper at (760) 878-0001. (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the OVGA 
to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require alternative formatting of 
this agenda, please notify Laura Piper 72 hours prior to the meeting to enable the OVGA to make the agenda available in a reasonable 
alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: In order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, Governor Newsom has issued 
Executive Orders that temporarily suspend certain requirements of the Brown Act.  The Bishop City Council 
Chambers are closed to the public, and the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority will conduct this meeting 
exclusively online. Directors and staff will participate via videoconference accessible to the public at:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86989033987?pwd=cWxZcTkxRFd6RmZpS0FHTzk1cU1QQT09

To join by phone, refer to the numbers and webinar ID at the bottom of the agenda.  To provide public comment, at 
the appropriate agenda item during the meeting, press the raise your hand button in the Zoom window.  Public 
comment also may be provided by emailing comments, limited to 250 words or less, prior to the meeting or before 
the staff report for the item has ended.  Efforts will be made to read your comment, but submittals longer than 250 
words may not be read or may be summarized due to time limitations.  All comments will be made a part of the 
record.  Please submit a separate email for each item that you wish to comment upon to lpiper@inyocounty.us, and 
identify in the subject line of the email which agenda item the comment addresses.

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any time and 
in any order during the meeting at the Board’s discretion.)

1. Pledge of allegiance.

2. Public comment.

3. Introductions.

4. Approval of minutes from the July 20, 2021 OVGA Board meeting.

5. Board Member Reports.

6. OVGA staff reports
a. Financial Report 
b. Report on Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority activities.
c. Tri-Valley survey update

7. Discussion and possible direction to staff regarding future management actions and associated projected 
costs to implement the Groundwater Sustainability Plan.

8. Action Item: Creation of Owens Valley Groundwater Basin Management Areas. 

9. Discussion regarding future agenda items.

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86989033987?pwd=cWxZcTkxRFd6RmZpS0FHTzk1cU1QQT09
mailto:lpiper@inyocounty.us


Members: Big Pine CSD - City of Bishop - County of Inyo - County of Mono - Indian Creek Westridge CSD 
Interested Parties:: Lone Pine Paiute Shoshone Tribe - Owens Valley Committee

2

10. Adjourn.

Join the August 12, 2021 OVGA webinar:

Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86989033987?pwd=cWxZcTkxRFd6RmZpS0FHTzk1cU1QQT09

Or One tap mobile : 
    US: +16699006833,,86989033987  or +13462487799,,86989033987  

Or Telephone:

    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):
        US: +1 669 900 6833
                +1 346 248 7799 
                +1 253 215 8782
               +1 929 205 6099 
                +1 301 715 8592
               +1 312 626 6799 

Webinar ID: 869 8903 3987
Passcode: 630906
    International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kesHbjlXU

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86989033987?pwd=cWxZcTkxRFd6RmZpS0FHTzk1cU1QQT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kesHbjlXU


County of Inyo

County Administrator
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 10, 2021
 
FROM:  Leslie Chapman
 
SUBJECT:  Declare items surplus and appove donation of furniture
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare a limited amount of office furniture staged at the fairgrounds after the move to the 
County Office Building that was subsequently acquired by various local agencies to be surplus; and B) approve 
the donation of said office furniture to various local agencies (4/5ths vote required).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
California Government Code section 25365 allows the Board of Supervisors, upon a 4/5ths vote, to donate the 
County's personal property that it declares to be surplus to local public agencies.  This item is on for your Board to 
retroactively declare certain personal property to be surplus to the County, and to donate said property to certain 
local public agencies.

With the move to the new County Office Building, the County had a stockpile of old and used office furniture 
staged at the fairgrounds.  Due to some miscommunication amongst County staff, the Eastern Sierra Transit 
Authority, the City of Bishop, and the Round Valley School District were told that the furniture was going to be 
thrown away and they could pick up some pieces of that furniture for their respective agencies use.  Those 
agencies did that and have a limited amount of the office furniture in their current possession.  As such, staff 
requests that the Board declare said furniture to be surplus, and to donate that furniture to those agencies 
pursuant to Government Code section 25365.   
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
A notice of this intended action was published pursuant to Government Code section 25365(c). 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could seek the return of the furniture at issue, which would allow it to be distributed to County 
departments that may be in need of some office furniture.  Any furniture remaining thereafter could be disposed of 
in the regular course of business, including a potential donation to local public agencies. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
The fiscal impact is unknown at this time, as County Departments will not have as much access to the old 
furniture that was already obtained by other entities.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
 
APPROVALS:
John Vallejo Created/Initiated - 7/23/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 7/23/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 7/23/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 7/23/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 8/4/2021
Denelle Carrington Approved - 8/4/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/4/2021
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 8/4/2021



County of Inyo

County Counsel/County Administrator
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 10, 2021
 
FROM:  Marshall Rudolph, Clint Quilter
 
SUBJECT:  Relocation of the Veterans Service Officer and Repeal of Chapter 2.07
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board:
A. waive further reading of the proposed ordinance titled, “An Ordinance of the Board of Supervisors of the 
County of Inyo, State of California, Repealing Chapter 2.07 of the Inyo County Code, Pertaining to 
Reorganization of County Departments and Offices," and schedule enactment for 11 a.m. August 17, 2021, in the 
Board of Supervisors Chambers, County Administrative Center, Independence; and
B. waive further reading of the proposed ordinance titled, “An Ordinance of the Board of Supervisors of the 
County of Inyo, State of California, Repealing Ordinance Number 1044 and Establishing a New Chapter 2.30 of 
the Inyo County Code," and schedule enactment for 11 a.m. August 17, 2021, in the Board of Supervisors 
Chambers, County Administrative Center, Independence.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
For a number of reasons, not the least of which includes a more efficient budgeting structure, County 
administration recommends your Board relocate the Veterans Services Officer to a place within the CAO's 
Department. This action requires an ordinance because the Veterans Services Officer was previously organized 
within the Sheriff's Department via ordinance.  As discussed in the Background section of this staff report, staff 
recommends you concurrently repeal Inyo County Code Chapter 2.07.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
Normally the movement of a position like the VSO would be routine business for a county board of supervisors. 
However, Inyo County is in a relatively unique spot here given the existence of "Measure A" and Inyo County 
Code Chapter 2.07, which codified Measure A.  Measure A generally provides that no Board ordinance changing 
the structure of a County department or office is effective until it is thereafter approved by the voters.
 
 Measure A was a citizens initiative measure placed on the March 7, 2000, Inyo County consolidated statewide 
primary election ballot. A majority of the citizens voting approved Measure A although issues were raised at the 
time regarding its likely unconstitutionality. Notwithstanding Measure A being passed, in 2001, the Board moved 
the Veterans Service Officer into the Sheriff’s Department without adhering to the requirements of Measure A. 
Additionally, in 2004, the Board reorganized the Environmental Health Department via consolidating (1) the 
Animal Control Program with the Sheriff’s Department and (2) the Mosquito Abatement Program with the Ag 
Department, also without adhering to the requirements of Measure A. However, in 2006, the Board codified the 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

substance of Measure A as Chapter 2.07 of the Inyo County Code.  That codification did not affect the validity or 
invalidity of Measure A.  And Chapter 2.07 itself is arguably an unconstitutional attempt to delegate to the 
voters a discretionary power that is in the nature of a public trust which cannot be exercised by anyone except 
the Board of Supervisors.
 
 The Office of the County Counsel previously opined, and continues to opine, that a court would most likely find 
Measure A to be an unconstitutional attempt to use the initiative power because, among other reasons, your 
Board was delegated exclusive power over the organization of County Departments and certain Offices by the 
State Legislature (pursuant to the California Constitution).  However, given the codification of Chapter 2.07 by 
your Board requiring your organizational decisions to be ratified by the electorate, the recommendation to re-
organize the veterans service officer within the County government, and the potential for your Board to come 
across the same or similar issues in the future, staff recommends that Chapter 2.07 be repealed concurrently 
with the relocation of the VSO.  This would leave only the applicability and likely unconstitutionality of Measure A 
as the key remaining issues needing resolution if litigation is commenced over the relocation of the VSO.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could make no changes to the location of the VSO within the County government.  This is not 
recommended based on the reasons provided for moving the VSO above.

Your Board could change the location of the VSO but also leave Inyo County Code Chapter 2.07 in place.  This is 
not recommended because your Board would then need to submit the Ordinance to the voters in order to comply 
with Chapter 2.07, which is itself arguably unconstitutional.  Or, if you did not choose to comply with Chapter 
2.07, then the validity of the Ordinance would be exposed to a lawsuit based on a failure to adhere to the 
provisions of Chapter 2.07, in addition to the potential claims regarding the applicability of Measure A.  Any 
similar future actions would be subject to the same costs and/or litigation exposures if Chapter 2.07 is left in 
place.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance Replacing Chapter 2.30
2. Ordinance Repealing Chapter 2.07
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 7/13/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 7/13/2021
Clint Quilter Approved - 8/3/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 8/4/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/4/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 8/4/2021
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 8/4/2021



 

Page 1  

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF 

INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, REPEALING ORDINANCE NUMBER 1044 

AND ESTABLISHING A NEW CHAPTER 2.30 OF THE INYO COUNTY CODE, 

PERTAINING TO THE VETERANS SERVICES OFFICER 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the California Constitution, the State Legislature has delegated 

to county boards of supervisors the exclusive power to organize the structure of County 

Departments and certain County Offices; and 

 

WHEREAS, in March of 2000, the County’s voters approved a citizens initiative 

measure identified as “Measure A”, that interferes with the Board of Supervisors’ ability 

to carry out that exclusive power by requiring voter approval of any ordinances the Board 

may wish to enact that would alter the structure of County departments and offices; and 

 

WHEREAS, in 2004, Inyo County located the Veterans Services Office within the 

Sheriff’s Department without adhering to the requirements of Measure A; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors has determined that Measure A is 

unconstitutional; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors has also determined that it will now 

be more efficient and effective to locate the Veterans Services Office within the County 

Administrator’s Office, which will require enactment of an ordinance. 

 

[INTENTIONALLY BLANK]  



 

Page 2  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo ordains as 

follows: 

 

SECTION I:  Inyo County Ordinance No. 1044 is hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION II: Military and Veterans Code Section 970 allows the board of supervisors of 

any county to appoint, prescribe the qualifications of and fix the compensation of the 

county veterans service officer. Military and Veterans Code Section 970 also provides 

that two or more counties may jointly establish a single veterans service office which 

shall serve all the counties that agreed to the joint establishment of that office. Military 

and Veterans Code Section 972 provides that the board of supervisors may provide the 

veterans service officer with such assistance and facilities as it deems necessary. Finally, 

Government Code Section 24308 authorizes a county board of supervisors, by ordinance, 

to organize the delivery of services by consolidating, integrating, or separating duties and 

functions of county officers and organizational units within departments, to the extent 

deemed necessary by the board of supervisors. 

 

SECTION III: Chapter 2.30 is hereby added to the Inyo County Code to read as follows: 

  

“2.30.010 Location. The County Veterans Service Office is located within the 

County Administrator’s Office. 

 

2.30.020 Duties. 

 

The County Veterans Service functions are as follows: 

 

    A.   Administering the aid provided for in, and investigating all claims, 

applications or request for aid made pursuant to the terms of Chapter 5, Division 4 

of the Military and Veterans Code; 

 

    B.   Assisting every veteran of any war of the United States and the dependent 

of every deceased veteran, in presenting and pursuing any claim the veteran may 

have against the United States and establishing the veteran’s right to any 

privilege, preference, care, or compensation provided for by the laws of the 

United States or of this State; 

 

    C.   Presenting and pursuing claims against the United States referred by any 

public agency pursuant to Section 721 of the Military and Veterans Code; 

 

    D.   Administering and certifying oaths and affirmations, taking and certifying 

affidavits and acknowledgements, and exercising any other power of a notary 

public, as part of the veterans officer duties under Chapter 5, Division 4 of the 

Military and Veterans Code in assisting veterans with respect to their affairs; 

 



 

Page 3  

    E.   Establishing offices in Independence, Bishop, and such other locations as 

are provided by the county, and performing outreach services and activities in 

other areas as are reasonable and necessary; 

 

    F.    Any other duties provided for the county veterans service officer by the 

State of California; and 

 

    G.   All other related duties and functions as determined by the county. 

 

2.30.030 Assets. Upon location within the County Administrator’s Office, all 

assets of the county Veterans Service Office held by it or any other County 

Department shall become assets of the County Administrator’s Office. 

 

2.30.040 Personnel. Upon location within the County Administrator’s Office and 

except as provided in Section 2.30.050 below, all employees and other personnel 

who serve the county veterans service office and perform veterans service 

functions, shall remain employees of the County and become the personnel of the 

County Administrator’s Office at their existing or equivalent classifications, and 

at their existing salaries and benefits that include accrued and unused vacation, 

sick-leave, flex-time, and health and pension plans. Further employment seniority 

of an employee of the County Veterans Service Office upon the Veterans Service 

Office being located within the County Administrator’s Office shall be counted 

towards seniority in the County Administrator’s Office and all time spent in the 

same, equivalent, or higher classification shall be counted toward classification 

seniority. 

 

2.30.050 Veterans Service Officer—Qualifications, appointment, duties, and 

compensation. 

 

A.   Any person appointed as the Veterans Service Officer shall have the 

following qualifications: 

 

1.    Shall be a veteran as defined by Section 980 of the Military 

and Veterans Code; 

 

B.   The Veterans Service Officer shall be appointed by (and report to) the 

board of supervisors or its designee. 

 

C.   The Veterans Service Officer’s duties shall be those set forth in 

Military and Veterans Code Section 970 et seq., and the ordinance codified in this 

section. 

 

2.30.060 [RESERVED] 

 

2.30.070 Agreement for joint Inyo-Mono Veterans Service Office. 

 



 

Page 4  

Mono County may agree in writing to the joint establishment of a Inyo-Mono 

veterans service office as established under the provisions of this chapter. Should 

Mono County not agree, or cease to agree at any time to the joint establishment of 

the Veterans Service Officer as provided for by this chapter, then this chapter 

shall provide only for the establishment and location of the Inyo County Veterans 

Service Officer.” 

 

SECTION III:  EFFECT ON PRIOR AGREEMENTS 

 

This ordinance shall not have any effect on agreements entered into with Mono County 

pursuant to the provisions of former Inyo County Code Section 2.30.070, and any such 

agreements shall remain in full force and effect according to the terms of any such 

agreements. 

 

SECTION IV:   EFFECTIVE DATE 

 This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect thirty (30) days 

after its adoption. Before the expiration of fifteen (15) days from the adoption hereof, this 

Ordinance shall be published as required by Government Code Section 25124.  The Clerk 

of the Board is hereby instructed and ordered to so publish this Ordinance together with 

the names of the Board members voting for and against same. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS __ DAY OF ________, 2021. 

 
AYES: 

 

NOES: 

 

ABSTAIN: 

 

ABSENT: 

 

       _______________________________ 

       Jeff Griffiths, Chairperson 

       Inyo County Board of Supervisors 

 

ATTEST: 

Leslie Chapman 

Clerk of the Board 

 

 

By:______________________________________ 
        Darcy Ellis, Assistant 



 

Page 1  

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF 

INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, REPEALING CHAPTER 2.07 OF THE 

INYO COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO REORGANIZATION OF COUNTY 

DEPARTMENTS AND OFFICES 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the California Constitution, the State Legislature has delegated 

to county boards of supervisors the exclusive power to organize the structure of County 

Departments and certain County Offices; and 

 

WHEREAS, in March of 2000, the County’s voters approved a citizens initiative 

measure identified as “Measure A”, that interferes with the Board of Supervisors’ ability 

to carry out that exclusive power by requiring voter approval of any ordinances the Board 

may wish to enact that would alter the structure of County departments and offices; and 

 

WHEREAS, in 2006, the Board of Supervisors codified Measure A as Chapter 2.07 of 

the Inyo County Code, via Ordinance 1044; and 

 

WHEREAS, the current Board of Supervisors determined that Chapter 2.07 is 

unconstitutional; and 

 

WHEREAS, this ordinance does not affect the validity or invalidity of Measure A. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo ordains as 

follows: 

 

SECTION I:  Chapter 2.07 is repealed in its entirety. 

 

SECTION II:  EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

 This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect thirty (30) days 

after its adoption. Before the expiration of fifteen (15) days from the adoption hereof, this 

Ordinance shall be published as required by Government Code Section 25124.  The Clerk 

of the Board is hereby instructed and ordered to so publish this Ordinance together with 

the names of the Board members voting for and against same. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS __ DAY OF ________, 2021. 

 
AYES: 

 

NOES: 

 

ABSTAIN: 

 

ABSENT: 

 



 

Page 2  

       _______________________________ 

       Jeff Griffiths, Chairperson 

       Inyo County Board of Supervisors 

 

ATTEST: 

Leslie Chapman 

Clerk of the Board 

 

 

By:______________________________________ 
        Darcy Ellis, Assistant 


	 Call to Order
	1. PUBLIC COMMENT  (Join meeting via Zoom here)

	 Closed Session
	2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATIO
	3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGA
	4. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Pursu

	 Open Session
	5. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	6. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.
	7. PUBLIC COMMENT
	8. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two 
	9. INTRODUCTIONS - The following new employee will be
	10. COVID-19 STAFF REPORT

	 Departmental - Personnel Actions
	11. Approve the hiring of one Human Services Supervisor
	Agenda Request Form

	12. Request Board: A) approve the job description for 
	Agenda Request Form
	Probation Services Coordinator Job Description

	13. Request Board find that consistent with the adopte
	Shelter Attendant

	14. Request Board find that, consistent with the adopt
	Public Safety Dispatcher


	 Consent Agenda
	15. Request Board appoint HHS Assistant Director Meagh
	Agenda Request Form

	16. Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the contr
	Agenda Request Form
	Helix Contract Amendment 1

	17. Planning Department - Request Board approve the Jo
	Agenda Request Form
	USGS Payment Agreement

	18. Request Board approve Resolution No. 2021-42, titl
	Agenda Request Form
	Notice of Completion and Resolution


	 Departmental
	19. Request Board receive a presentation on the 2020 A
	Agenda Request Form

	20. Water Department - Request Board hear an informati
	Agenda Request Form
	Board of Supervisors OVGA GSP Workshop

	21. Request Board provide direction to the Owens Valle
	Agenda Request Form
	OVGA Agenda Draft 08.12.21 Agenda

	22. Request Board: A) declare a limited amount of offi
	Agenda Request Form

	23. Request Board:A. waive further reading of the prop
	Agenda Request Form
	Ordinance Replacing Chapter 2.30
	Ordinance Repealing Chapter 2.07


	 Comment
	24. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Board Members and Staff Reports



